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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 002-69494

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION

(Exact name of Registrant as Specified in Its @ngar

Delaware 13-3025550
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)

555 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Suite C208, Rye, NY Q058
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number (914) 925-0020
Securities registered under Section 12(b) of thehBrge Act: None
Securities registered under Section 12(g) of thehBrge Act: Common Stock
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRile 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this ¢bgpduring the preceding 12 months (or
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Non-accelerated filer [ ] (Do not check if smalleporting company) Smaller reporting company [X]
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The aggregate market value of the voting stock hgldon-affiliates of the Company computed by refiee to the price at which the stock
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are incorporated by reference into Part Il (ItekBsthrough 14) of this Report




Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemens

This Annual Report includes statements of our etgims, intentions plans and beliefs that constitétorwardiooking statements" within tl
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 398 amended, Section 21E of the Securities Exghant of 1934, as amended and are
intended to come within the safe harbor protectimvided by those sections. These statements, vilmciive risks and uncertainties, relat
the discussion of business strategies of Globatl @airporation ("the Company" or "Global Gold") amar expectations concerning future
operations, margins, profitability, liquidity andmital resources and to analyses and other infoom#iat are based on forecasts of future
results and estimates of amounts not yet deterdgingfe have used words such as "may," "will," "dddu’'expects," "intends," "plans,"
"anticipates," "believes," "thinks," "estimatesse€ks," "expects," "predicts," "could," "projectgdtential” and other similar terms and
phrases, including references to assumptionsjsiréiport to identify forward-looking statementfieBe forward-looking statements are made
based on expectations and beliefs concerning feveats affecting the Company and are subject tentminties, risks and factors relating to
our operations and business environments, all aélware difficult to predict and many of which dreyond the Company's control, that cc
cause our actual results to differ materially friihhase matters expressed or implied by these fortemking statements. These risks and other
factors include those listed under "Risk Factors! alsewhere in this report. The following fact@siong others, could cause our actual
results and performance to differ materially frdme tesults and performance projected in, or imghgthe forward-looking statements:

o the Company's history of losses and expectatidarther losses;
o the effect of poor operating results on the Camyp

o the Company's ability to expand its operationisdth new and existing locations and the Compaabyjlgty to develop and mine its
current and new sites;

o the Company's ability to raise capital,

o the Company's ability to fully utilize and retaiew executives;

o the impact of litigation, including internatidrabitrations;

o the impact of federal, state, local or foreigwernment regulations;
o the effect of competition in the mining industaynd

o0 economic and political conditions generally.

The Company assumes no obligation to publicly updatrevise these forward-looking statements fgrraason, or to update the reasons
actual results could differ materially from thosgiaipated in, or implied by, these forward-lookisigtements, even if new information
becomes available in the future.

Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors

The United States Securities and Exchange Commigthie “SEC”)limits disclosure for U.S. reporting purposes toenal deposits thal
company can economically and legally extract ordpo®. We use terms such as “reserves,” “resolrtgsplogic resources,” “proven,”
“probable,” “measured,” “indicated,” or “inferredywhich may not be consistent with the reserve didimsé established by the SEC Indu
Guide 7. Laws of foreign countries including Armeeand Chile are not consistent with SEC Industnyd@ 7 regarding use of such ter
We are required to adhere to the mining laws a&ugiirements of the countries we operate in whichuoe developing reserves as wel
exploration and mining activities pursuant to lawshe countries where we operate and to be in tiange with license requirements.
acknowledge that due to the differences in lawthefcountries in which we operate and SEC InduStride 7, our mining activities are be
reported for informational and disclosure purpdsased on foreign country requirements but alsottteSEC does not recognize any of
properties as having proven or probable reservableshed under SEC Industry Guide 7. Under SEidiry Guide 7, we can only state
we are in the exploration stage and have foundis@mies in mineralization amongst our drillinguklts, even though we have fore
country approved reserves, resources, mining legrend sales of concentrate.




ITEM 1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
(1) GENERAL OVERVIEW

Global Gold is currently in the exploration statiés engaged in exploration for, and developmert mining of, gold, silver, and other
minerals in Armenia, Canada and Chile. Until MaBdh 2011, the Company's headquarters were locat@ddenwich, Connecticut and as of
April 1, 2011 the Company’s headquarters are in, Rigv York. Its subsidiaries maintain offices astalff in Yerevan, Armenia, and
Santiago, Chile. The Company was incorporated &l Energy Corporation in the State of Delaward-ebruary 21, 1980 and, as further
described below, conducted other business pridatmary 1, 1995. During 1995, the Company chartgathime from Triad Energy
Corporation to Global Gold Corporation to pursugaia gold and copper mining rights in the formewt®t Republics of Armenia and
Georgia. The Company has not established provempiaizhble reserves, in accordance with SEC Ind@trige 7, at any of its

properties. The Company's stock is publicly traddte Company employs approximately 100 peoplealplon a year round basis and an
additional 200 people on a seasonal basis.

Although the Company competes with muititional mining companies which have substantgigater resources and numbers of employ
the Company’s long term presence and the expemidéknowledge of its personnel in Armenia and ifleCallow it to compete with
companies with greater resources.

In Armenia, the Company’s focus is primarily on theploration, development and production of golthatTukhmanuk property in the North
Central Armenian Belt. The Company is also focusethe exploration and development of the Marjash @n expanded Marjan North
property. In addition, the Company is exploringl @eveloping other sites in Armenia, including @@mpany’s Getik property. The
Company also holds royalty and participation rightsther locations in the country through affiéatand subsidiaries.

In Chile, the Companyg' focus is primarily on the exploration, developtremd production of gold at the Pureo propertyadatk central Chile
near Valdivia. The Company is also engaged intifiémg exploration and production opportunitiesodiher locations in Chile.

In Canada, the Company has engaged in uraniumratiolio activities in the provinces of Newfoundlaartd Labrador, but has phased out
activity, retaining a royalty interest in the Coahe Pond property in Newfoundland.

The Company also assesses exploration and produagijoortunities in other countries.
The subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

On January 24, 2003, the Company formed Globall@f® and Global Plata LLC, as wholly owned subsiidisy in the State of Delaware.
These companies were formed to be equal joint asvolea Chilean limited liability company, Mineradbil Chile Limitada ("Minera
Global"), formed as of May 6, 2003, for the purpo$eonducting operations in Chile.

On August 18, 2003, the Company formed Global QGaldenia LLC ("GGA"), as a wholly owned subsidiawhich in turn formed Global
Gold Mining LLC ("Global Gold Mining"), as a whollgwned subsidiary, both in the State of Delawateb@& Gold Mining was qualified to
do business as a branch operation in Armenia ams @ssets, royalty and participation interestsyedsas shares of operating companies in
Armenia.

On December 21, 2003, Global Gold Mining acquir8@% of the Armenian limited liability company SHR.,.C (renamed Global Gold
Hankavan, LLC ("GGH") as of July 21, 2006), whialidhthe license to the Hankavan and Marjan propeiti Armenia. On December 18,
2009, the Company entered into an agreement wilthe@aoutlining the terms of a joint venture on @@mpany’s Marjan property in
Armenia (“Marjan JV"). On March 12, 2010, GGH tsh@rred the rights, title and interest for the Marproperty to Marjan Mining
Company, a limited liability company incorporatetter the laws of the Republic of Armenia (“MarjaA’R An involuntary bankruptcy
petition was filed against GGH which was granted sncurrently on appeal. On June 18, 2010, thag2my closed Marjan JV leaving the
Company with a 45% interest. On October 7, 201® Gompany terminated the Marjan JV for Calderais-payment and non-
performance. See Legal Matters and Subsequentd&feran update on the Marjan JV.

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining acquired 5@#the Armenian limited liability company Mego-GoldLC, which is the licensee for
the Tukhmanuk mining property and seven surroundimoration sites. On August 2, 2006, Global Qdiding acquired the remaining
49% interest of Mego-Gold, LLC, leaving Global Gdfiining as the owner of 100% of Mego-Gold, LLC. eSsubsequent Events for an
update on Mego-Gold, LLC.






On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closed angaction to acquire 80% of the Armenian companjelea Investments, CJ.
(renamed "Getik Mining Company, LLC") andstapproximately 27 square kilometer Getik gold/imanexploration license area in
northeast Geghargunik province of Armenia. As @&yM0, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the renrai20% interest in Getik Minir
Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Mining as the @wiof 100% of Getik Mining Company, LLC. See Suhsent Events for an update
Getik Mining Company, LLC.

On January 5, 2007, the Company formed Global Go#hium, LLC ("Global Gold Uranium™), as a whollyvaed subsidiary, in the State of
Delaware, to operate the Company's uranium expdoraitivities in Canada.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compidmgugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fafjoint venture and on October
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢méh members of the Quijano family (“Quijanoby which Minera Global assume:
51% interest in the placer and hard rock gold Matirdios and Pureo properties in south centraleChiéar Valdivia. The name of the jc
venture company is Compania Minera Global Gold W&dS.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV”). On August 14, 2009, the Comp:
amended the above agreement whereby Global Goldiwalbecame wholly owned by the Company and rethianly the Pureo Clair
Block (approximately 8,200 hectares), transferrthg Madre De Dios claims block to the sole owngrsioi members of the Quija
family. On October 27, 2010, the Company entenéd an agreement with Conventus Ltd. a BVI corporaf“Conventus”)for the sale ¢
100% interest in GGV. See Subsequent Event fapaate on GGV.

The Company is a reporting company and is therefobect to the requirements of the Securitieskxachange Act of 1934, as amended (the
"Exchange Act"), and accordingly files its Annuagort on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 1@®@finitive Proxy Statements,
Current Reports on Form 8-K, and other informatiathh the Securities and Exchange Commission (tHeC'$. The public may read and

copy any materials filed with the SEC at the SEQIblic Reference Room at 100 F Street, NW, WasbimddC 20549. Please call the SEC
at (800) SEC-0330 for further information on théoRuReference Room. As an electronic filer, thev@any's public filings are maintained

on the SEC's Internet site that contains reportsypand information statements, and other inforamategarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC. The address of thabsite is http://www.sec.gov.

The Company'’s filings are also accessible freehafge through the Company's Internet site afteCibrmpany has electronically filed such
material with, or furnished it to, the SEC. Thealebs of that website is http:// www.globalgoldcogm. However, such reports may not be
accessible through the Company's website as prgraptihey are accessible on the SEC's website.

(2) INITIAL ARMENIAN MINING PROJECT

In 1996, the Company acquired rights under a Jéamture Agreement with the Ministry of Industry Afmenia and Armgold, S.E., the
Armenian state enterprise, formed to provide chpitd multistage financing of the Armenian goldustty, which rights were finalized under
the Second Armenian Gold Recovery Company JointiferAgreement, dated as of September 30, 1997.

As of January 31, 1997, the Company and Global Gotdenia Limited, the Company's then wholly-ownealy@an Islands subsidiary
("GGA Cayman"), reached an initial agreement wittsttDynasty Mines, Ltd., whose name changed tdig&t&old Ltd. On July 5, 2002
("Sterlite"), a Canadian public company and whdseas were traded on the Toronto Stock Exchanderespect to the initial Armenian
project. The Company, GGA Cayman and Sterlite edtérto a definitive agreement, dated May 13, 1289Wer such agreement, Sterlite
acquired all of the stock of GGA Cayman, subjeatddain conditions, by advancing funds in stagesessary for the implementation of the
tailings reprocessing project and the preparatf@ngineering and business plan materials for ttreghian Joint Venture and

delivering 4,000,000 shares of First Dynasty (I&krlite) Common Stock to the Company (the "FDigrdement"). The parties thereafter
amended the FDM Agreement on July 24, 1998. Putdodhe FDM Agreement, the Company retains thitrimtil December 31, 2009 to
elect to participate at a level of up to 20% witkriite, or any of its affiliates or successorsnterest, in any exploration project undertakel
them in Armenia. As of December 31, 2004, the Camgphid not own any shares of Sterlite common stat2006, Vedanta Resources plc
("Vedanta") acquired control of Sterlite throughimtar International Limited ("TSI"), an indireetholly-owned subsidiary of Vedanta. In
September 2007, Vedanta (and Sterlite) announ@dty had closed a stock sale transaction withP@EMining Ltd., which made
GeoProMining Ltd. and its affiliates the succesgorthe 20% obligation.




(3) ARMENIA PROPERTIES

The Company operates an office in Yerevan, Armaitiare it manages its exploration and mining adéigias well as reviews potential
acquisitions. A map showing the location of thegenties in Armenia (below) and other informationtba properties are located on the
Company's website.
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Hankavan
Hankavan is located in central Armenia in the K&tpyovince between Vanadzor and Meghradzor north@Marmarik River.

GGH acquired Hankavan licenses in December of 20@Righ the acquisition of the Armenian companyASH_C (since renamed Global
Gold Hankavan, LLC ("GGH")), and has been condgrtirdrilling program along with other exploratioetigities to confirm the historical
feasibility work done on the copper, molybdenum golti mineralization in the Soviet era. GGH alspanded its exploration activities to !
other, smaller license areas in and around Hankakaaddition, GGH is conducting exploration ardnming to determine the feasibility of a
quick start mining operation for copper oxide iisthrea. These activities have not been activetgyed pending performance of a
conditional, confidential settlement agreement \ilith Armenian Government entered as of Februarg@sg.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pradiags”, below.




Marjan

The Marjan mining property is located in Southwest&rmenia, along the Nakichevan border in the Sypnovince. The property is
accessible by car or truck through existing pavedidirt roads. The property includes two partsyjtaCentral, where early drilling and
underground exploration has been carried out aradjavl North (Mazmazak), which is situated somekingnorth of Marjan Central. The
whole property is roughly rectangular in shape,Kr2wide by 6.1 km long. The approximate geograioiordinates of the property are, 39°
24’ 00" Latitude and 45° 51’ 00” Longitude. Electpower is proximate to the property. There &al river which passes in the immediate
proximity to the property. The Company does natehany facilities or material equipment at the grtyp. The Company has only done
exploration work at the property and has not depetibany significant surface or underground workimfsastructure with the exception of
approximately 60 kilometers of roads built. Allugment needed is brought to the site on an asedkleasis from the Company’s other
properties or from contractors.

The area of the Marjan Property is underlain bytigr volcanic rocks, which have been intruded bytim-northwest trending dioritic
dykes. The bulk of the gold mineralization is @néd within polymetallic sulphide veins, which aesociated with northerthwest trendin
hydrothermal alteration zones. These alteratioreg@re readily observed on the surface as rugfsetozones on outcrops. Two types of
gold mineralization have been observed. Thesga@remineralization associated with sulphide véimgolcanic rocks, and gold
mineralization adjacent to dioritic dykes, whiclrirde the volcanic rocks.

The Company does not currently have establishedves at the Marjan Property, except as reportatidoRepublic of Armenia State
Committee on Reserves (“GKZ") and is focusing oplesation work based on Armenian historical GKZats (please refer to the
“Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 af tlieport). The Company has done geological mapground geophysical surveys,
trenching and diamond drill testing at Marjan andtmues its exploration work there based on thme\ian historical GKZ records in
conjunction with the exploration work and resultsd so far. Additional exploration work will neadbe funded with additional funds raised
through joint ventures, debt, equity or a comborathereof.

The Marjan property is a lode deposit which willh@ed using underground adits. The Company has\ational special mining license
#HA-L-14/526 which covers surface rights for minjmgploration and related purposes for gold andfeommus metals (please refer to the
“Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 dd$ tleport). The license area is defined by thiv¥ahg coordinates:

1. X =4365000 3. X =4363770 5. X =4360000
Y = 8570000 Y = 8574530 Y =8572700
2. X =4366800 4. X =4360400
Y = 8572000 Y = 8575250

In 2009, GGH engaged in mapping, sampling, drifllgsis and other exploration work at Marjan andagged Marjan North area. As of
December 31, 2010, the Company has not generajecte@nue from sales of any concentrate or otheeralized material at the
property. As of December 31, 2009, the Companyspast approximately $3,516,500 on mining and exgpion activities at this property,
excluding acquisition and capital costs.

This property was previously explored during theiSpbera. SHA, LLC applied for an original licenfsem the Armenian

Government. Global Gold Mining acquired 100% of/SHLC, the Armenian company which held the licets¢he property in December
2003. On April 28, 2008, the Company was issutdeaty-five year “special mining licenséjr the Marjan property effective April 22, 2C
and expiring April 22, 2033 which expands the pticense term and substantially increases thedieemea from approximately 1,400 acre
approximately 4,800 acres. The Company is requogshy annual governmental fees of approximatBly,0. The Company is also
required to perform work at the property as suteditind approved in its mining plan which includésing of 150,000 tonnes of mineralized
rock between April 22, 2008 and April 21, 2008, amdhave additional reserves approved under Arnmelngay in order to maintain the
licenses in good standing (please refer to the tiGaary Note to U.S. Investors” on page 3 of tleipart). On March 12, 2010, GGH
transferred the rights, title and interest for k&rjan property to Marjan Mining Company, a limitiability company incorporated under the
laws of the Republic of Armenia (“Marjan RA”). Man Mining Company is the licensee of the Marjaogerty.

On December 18, 2009, the Company entered intgeeement with Caldera outlining the terms of atj@ienture on the Comparg/Marjar
property in Armenia (“Marjan JV").




Key terms include that Caldera shall own 55% ofgshares of a newly created joint venture compaegoine the operator of the project, and
be responsible for all expenses. To maintain3& fnterest, Caldera is obligated to spend up t& 8800,000 on the Property, issue 500
shares of Caldera and make a payment of US$ 100000 before March 30, 2010 to Global Gold Corgiora The joint venture board sh
have two Caldera representatives and one Global fepresentative. However, certain actions inclgdidoption of the annual operating i
capital budgets require unanimous consent. Shoaldera not perform in accordance with the termthefMarjan JV, then Global Gold will
have 100% interest of the Marjan JV transferrekizadd Caldera will receive an NSR on the Marjarpprty equal to .5% for each tranche
US$ 1,000,000 up to a maximum NSR of 3% without proyating.

Also under the joint venture agreement Calderaavith 100% in the Marjan Gold-Silver Project by nrakguarterly payments totaling US$
2,850,000, starting September 30, 2010. If Caldesses one of its quarterly payments based dailtse to raise funds from capital
markets, it is entitled to an automatic 30 day esi@n from each quarterly payment; if Caldera dié$aan an extended payment then Caldera
shall forfeit its shares of the Marjan JV, be redig of its investment commitment, but still be labor the payments to Global Gold which
shall accrue interest at 10%, and possibly retaiyalty interest as described above. If Caldeakes its payments and completes its
obligations, Global Gold will retain a 1.5% NSR alhproduction on the Central zone and a 2.5% N8RIbproduction on the Northern
zone. Caldera can prepay the payments, fulfilitlestment commitment, and take 100% interesheflV at any time.

The agreement was subject to approval by the TSXurfe Exchange and the Board of Directors of tispeetive companies. As of April 30,
2010, Caldera paid the Company $100,000 and retdi8xX Venture Exchange approval on the transaeiwhwas waiting for final approv
of its 43-101 to finalize the transaction. On JaBe2010, the transaction was closed. On Octép2010, the Company terminated the
Marjan JV for Caldera’s non-payment and non-perfotoe. See Legal Matters and Subsequent Everdas fgpdate on the Marjan JV.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.
Tukhmanuk

The Tukhmanuk property is adjacent to the Hankaraperty in central Armenia, between the Aragatsotd Kotayk provinces. The
property includes seven surrounding exploratiosssits well as other assets.. The property isddagiproximately 60 km (72 km by road)
north of Yerevan, close to the Town of Aparan amae 75 km (by road) from the Alaverdi copper smatienorthern Armenia. Access to
the Tukhmanuk Property is by paved road (aboutrB#rkm Yerevan to the turn-off of the road northAgfaran and about 15 km by dirt road
from Aparan to Melikkyugh, the nearby village t@thite). Local infrastructure is available at $ite and at nearby towns. Infrastructure at
the site includes electrical power, cell phone reknand road building equipment. Logistical suppiorterms of power, is available at the
Tukhmanuk site, and at Melikkyugh, which is linkegla 10 Kv line to the Armenian Power grid. Waseavailable from natural sources
within the property, independent of community sestcIn addition to the central property, the asijon included a 200,000 tonne per year
capacity plant. The Company has maintained thet'slarushers, mills, and gravitation circuits imogl condition while also adding a hydro
cyclone and flotation cells, as well as buildingeav tailings dam. Other major assets at the ptpjeclude several bulldozers, excavators
and a track trencher which are all in good conditi@he property also includes some temporary Ingushits, and hangers which are used to
store core samples, a gold room, and a new IS@iedraboratory.

The area of the Tukhmanuk Property is underlaid@m@nantly by Jurassic volcanic rocks and Cretaséoiuusive rocks. The volcanic roc
comprise andesites and dacites, and the intruslesrare dominantly granitic with minor graniticeiss and amphibolites. Parts of the area
are also covered by Tertiary volcanic rocks inahgdbbsidian and perlites. Gold mineralizationiia Tukhmanuk area is hosted by both
volcanic and intrusive rocks.

On October 27, 2009, the Company issued a presaselannouncing the first stage of approval ofvesdor its Toukhmanuk expansion.
The Republic of Armenia’s State Natural Resourcgemty (the "Agency") issued its certificate basedh® proposal of the Agency’s State
Geological Expert Commission made during its Ocat@3 2009 session. The total ore reserve appravas roughly 21,900,000 tonnes with
an average gold grade of 1.62 grams per tonneutt @f grade of 0.80 grams per tonne and an aeesdger grade of 4.88 grams per tonne.
Total approved reserves in the C1 and C2 categaréeesoughly 35.614 tonnes (or 1,145,000 ouncegplaf and 107 tonnes (or 3,440,000
ounces) of silver. In its approval, the Agency atitteat the “approved reserves entirely corresporiti¢ requirements for Measured and
Indicated reserves under International Standards."




On November 18, 2009, the Company issued a pressseeannouncing that following up on the issuarit¢be approving a first stage gold
reserve, the Republic of Armenia’s State Naturadrieces Agency (the “Agency”) has delivered it$ diglcision with backup calculations on
November 13, 2009 confirming an additional goldbrese in the inferred category. The Agency isstedécision based on the proposa
the Agency'’s State Geological Expert Commission enduting its October 23, 2009 session. A copy efdfficial approval and a partial
unofficial translation are available on the companyebsite www.globalgoldcorp.com

The approved gold resource in the Inferred categop tonnes (or 1,225,276 ounces), which togetlithrthe approved 1.145 million ounc
of reserves marks a sharp increase from the 8réeapproved under GKZ decision N28 of January2@64. The reserve and resource
estimates were concluded at a cutoff grade of tagg per tonne, all as described in Exhibit 10 bw.

The Company has done geological mapping, groungigesical surveys, trenching and diamond drill tegtt Tukhmanuk and continues its
exploration work there based on the Armenian hisabiGKZ records in conjunction with the exploratiwork and results done so far (please
refer to the “Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors”gage 3 of this report). Additional explorationnkavill need to be funded with additional
funds raised through joint ventures, debt, equityg combination thereof. See “Subsequent Eveptstipdate on funding.

The Tukhmanuk property is a lode deposit whicheisip mined using an open pit method. The Compasydme National exploration licer
#15, as extended, covering approximately 10,91&safor sub-surface exploitation of gold. The Comypalso has one National mining
license #HA-L-14/356 which covers the central sattf the property and is approximately 446 acoesrfining gold and silver. The
Company is required to pay annual governmental déapproximately $32,000. The Company is alsairegl to spend annually
approximately $1,200,000 on exploration work andimg annually 80,000 tonnes of mineralized rocthatproperty as submitted and
approved in its mining plan in order to maintaie titenses in good standing (please refer to tteitiGnary Note to U.S. Investoreh page
of this report). The exploration license areadfirced by the following coordinates:

Global Gold Corporation — Tukhmanuk Property, Armenia

Corner Easting (X) Northing (Y)
1 4501580 8444500
2 4504350 8447800
3 4502700 8450000
4 4504050 8451850
5 4503250 8452250
6 4503300 8453950
7 4502500 8453900
8 4502400 8450850
9 4501950 8451350
10 4501680 8452550
11 4500525 8453380
12 4499730 8453950
13 4499800 8451600
14 4500650 8451550
15 4500700 8450600
16 4500000 8449870
17 4498550 8450700
18 4497000 8450650
19 4497000 8448370
20 4497900 8448700
21 4498200 8447550
22 4497000 8446100
23 4497000 8444400
24 4499000 8444400
25 4491750 8445650




In 2008, Global Gold Mining upgraded the plant &atul installed a new gold room, recommenced miaing production of concentrate, and
continued its analysis of the prior years drillués.  Also, the Company compiled its reserve repod submitted it to the state committee on
reserves of Armenia in March 2009 (please refénéd‘Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors” on pagd g report). The Company has
generated minimal sales from gold and silver cotraémfrom the property as of December 31, 2008lesSwere approximately $6,000 in
2006, $10,400 in 2007, nothing in 2008, $136,602009, and $358,400 in 2010. The sales in 200& ¥eer41.11 tonnes of gold and silver
concentrate with content of approximately 33 gitiggmmd 290 g/t silver. The sales in 2007 weredfa23 tones of gold and silver concentrate
with content of approximately 21 g/t gold and 11f7sijjver. The sales in 2009 were for 109.98 t@noiegold and silver concentrate with
content of approximately 54 g/t gold and 216 ditesi The sales in 2009 were for 226.62 tonnegotd and silver concentrate with conten
approximately 53 g/t gold and 200 g/t silver. Tmmpany has mined mineralized rock of approximab@00 tonnes in 2006 with content
of approximately 1.27 g/t gold and 6.37 g/t silvews,mining in 2007, approximately 82,000 tonne2008 with content of approximately 1.85
g/t gold and 5.21 g/t silver, no mining in 2009pagximately 21,000 tonnes in 2010 with contentgfraximately 2.08 g/t gold and 5.68 g/t
silver. As of December 31, 2010, the Company pasitsapproximately $8,335,000 on mining and expionsactivities at this property,
excluding acquisition and capital costs.

On May 22, 2008, the government of Armenia issuéspacial exploration licensdb the Company for the Tukhmanuk mining propefihe
license is effective May 13, 2008 and expires oryN&, 2010 with the option of being extended foraaditional two years. The spet
exploration license does not affect the Companyanty-five year license over the smaller “Centrat®n” of the property. The spec
exploration license expands the prior license tanah increases the license area by approximatelya6tes, from approximately 10,297 a
to approximately 10,915 acres.

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatshare purchase agreement to acquire the Armkmiged liability company Mego-

Gold, LLC which acquired the license from the gowveent for the Tukhmanuk mining property and surtbog exploration sites as well as
the owner of the related processing plant andradlsets. On August 2, 2006, Global Gold Minixereised its option to acquire the
remaining forty-nine percent (49%) of Mego-Gold,ZLin exchange for one million dollars ($1,000,080) five hundred thousand

(500,000) restricted shares of the Company's constamk with a contingency allowing the sellerseétl back the 500,000 shares on or be
September 15, 2007 for a payment of $1 milliol& Company's stock is not traded at or above tvlardaand fifty cents ($2.50) at any time
between July 1, 2007 and August 31, 2007. On &dme 12, 2006, Global Gold Mining loaned two hunktteousand dollars ($200,000) to
Karapet Khachatryan ("Maker"), one of the selldrtego-Gold LLC, a citizen of the Republic of Armianas evidenced by a convertible
promissory note payable (“Note”) to Global Gold g, with interest in arrears on the unpaid priatipalance at an annual rate equal to ten
percent (10%). At any time following September 2806, the Company, at its sole option, had the tiglsonvert all of Maker's debt from t
date of the Note to the date of conversion intaeshaf common stock of the Company at the converngiice of $1.50 per share with all of
such shares as security for all obligations. Madtedged two hundred fifty five thousand (255,0004res of the Company's common stock as
security for his obligations thereunder. On Septenils, 2007, the contingency period expired withexdrcise, extension or amendment. The
Company has accounted for this by booking the 3Dghares, at the fair market value of $1,000,0@6,Additional Paid-In Capital. The
Company also booked the $200,000 secured loarNiote Receivable and accrued interest, from incapifoNote as per the terms of the

Note above, into Additional PeIn Capital. On February 12, 2008 the Company @sed its option and converted the Note and accrued
interest into one hundred fifty two thousand selendred seventy-eight (152,778) shares, which weme cancelled.

See Subsequent Events for an update on the Tuklnpaoperty.
See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pratiags”, below.
Getik

The Getik property is located in the northeast Geghinik province of Armenia north-east of Lake Seaad approximately 110 km north-
east of Yerevan. The property is accessible byrcaucks through existing paved and dirt roa@ss and electric power are available at the
property. The property is located in the Alavef@ipan metallogenic zone on the edge of the Seviamesmone in an area characterized by
volcanogenic sedimentary rocks of Jurassic andifigage. A series of granitoid intrusives varyiranf ganodiorite to rhyolite composition
have been identified in the area associated widgenal scale east-west trending fault and losedde north-south trending faults. The
Company does not have any facilities or materiai@gent at the property. The Company has only eoqpdoration work at the property and
has not developed any significant surface or urrdergd working or infrastructure with the exceptmmapproximately 60 kilometers of roads
built. All equipment needed is brought to the sitean as needed basis from the Company’s othgegies or from contractors.
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The Company does not currently have establishedves at the Getik Property and is focusing onagpilon work based on Armenian
historical GKZ records. The Company has done ggcdéd mapping, ground geophysical surveys, trerghind diamond drill testing at Getik
and continues its exploration work there basechenArmenian historical GKZ records in conjunctioithithe exploration work and results
done so far (please refer to the “Cautionary Notd.S. Investors” on page 3 of this report). Agtatitll exploration work will need to be
funded with additional funds raised through joiehtures, debt, equity or a combination thereof.

The Getik property is a lode deposit which willténed using an open pit. The Company has two Natiexploration licenses #85 which
covers sub-surface exploitation of precious metatee Amrots manifestation and #86 which covetssurface exploitation of non-ferrous
metals in the Aygut manifestation, as further diésct below. The Company is required to pay angoakrnmental fees of $1,000. The
Company is also required to spend annually appratéiy $1,000,000 on exploration work in order tamtein the licenses in good
standing. The exploration license area is deflmethe following coordinates for the Amrots goldmifastation and Aygut copper
manifestation:

Amrots manifestation: 1. X = 4507000 5. X =4504350 9. X =4504000
Y = 8517000 Y = 8521350 Y = 8519650
. X =4507000 . X =4504450 10. X = 4504350
Y = 8525000 Y = 8520850 Y = 8519000
. X =4503000 . X =4504350 11. X = 4504750
Y = 8525000 Y = 8520350 Y = 8517000
. X =4503000 . X =4504125
Y = 8522000 Y = 8520250
Aygut manifestation: . X =4507000 3. X =4504750
Y = 8516000 Y = 8517000
. X =4507000 4, X =4504950
Y = 8517000 Y = 8516000

In 2009, Getik Mining Company, LLC engaged in maggpisampling, drill analysis and other exploratieork at the Getik property. As of
December 31, 2009, the Company has not generajecte@nue from sales of any concentrate or otheeralized material at the
property. As of December 31, 2010, the Companyshast approximately $650,000 on mining and exfilameactivities at this property,
excluding acquisition and capital costs.

On December 10, 2008, the government of Armenizeids new special exploration license expiring Dewer 10, 2013. The Company will
conduct further exploration activities during tpisriod.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closedaslpurchase agreement, dated as of January 28, R0 Athelea Investments, CIJSC
("Al") and Messrs. Simon Cleghorn, Sergio DiGiovyakimen Ghazarian, and Frank Pastorino (the "Sg)do transfer 80% of the shares of
Al to Global Gold Mining in exchange for 100,00Gsks of the Company's common stock. All assetdu(ireg the "Athelea” name) not
related to the approximately 27 square kilometeaik3mld/uranium exploration license area were $farred back to the Sellers. Al was
renamed the "Getik Mining Company, LLC." As of M3, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the remainiwenty percent interest in
Getik Mining Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Ming as the owner of one hundred percent of GetikiidilCompany, LLC.

See Subsequent Events for an update on the Gefilerty.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pradiags”, below.
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Lichkvadz-Tei and Terterasar
Lichtvadz-Tei and Terterasar are located in thétsma Armenia province of Syunik.

On August 15, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatint venture agreement with Iberian Resourdested’s subsidiary, Caucusus
Resources Ltd. (“CR”) to form the Aigedzor Mining@pany, LLC ("AMC") on an 80% CR, 20% Global Goldriihg basis in anticipation
of jointly acquiring and developing (a) for the hlovadz-Tei and Terterasar mining properties as agthe associated plant and assets in
southern Armenia through the Armenian limited liggpicompany Sipan 1, LLC ("Sipan 1") which is tleensee; and (b) mineral exploration
and related properties within a 20 kilometer radifithe southern Armenian town of Aigedzor.

On December 19, 2006, Global Gold Mining enteréRestructuring, Royalty, and Joint Venture TermimatAgreement” with CR. The
agreement restructures the parties' Aigedzor Midinghpany Joint Venture to transfer Global Gold Minis 20% interest to CR in exchange
for: one million dollars; a 2.5% Net Smelter Ret(tNSR”") royalty payable on all products produceonh the Lichkvaz and Terterasar mines
as well as from any mining properties acquired BD&ilometer radius of the town of Aigedzor in Hzern Armenia; the right to participate

to 20% in any new projects undertaken by Iberiaitsoaffiliates in Armenia until August 15, 2015)cafive million shares of Iberian's
common stock, which are restricted for one yearF8pruary 28, 2007, Iberian Resources Limited anoed its merger with Tamaya
Resources Limited (“Tamaya”), and Tamaya is nowetlgping those properties. As part of the merder five million shares of Iberian’s
common stock were exchanged for twenty million sbaf Tamaya’s common stock without any restricioGlobal Gold Mining retains the
right to participate up to 20% in any new projamtslertaken by Tamaya or its affiliates in ArmenidillAugust 15, 2015 and the 2.5% Net
Smelter Return royalty as described above. Dutiegyear ended December 31, 2007, the Companya#dl@,000,000 shares of the Tamaya
Resources Limited Stock that it owned. In 2008n&ga and Iberian Resources filed for bankruptciustralia. In 2009, the bankruptcy
administrators sold the shares of Sipan 1, LLCdod@nova Overseas company organized in the Unitatd Emirates which, on information
and belief, includes local and foreign investord amhich also assumes the continuing obligationSipén 1, LLC to Global Gold. . The
Company has taken action to protect its rights.in@ermation and belief, the license for Lichkva@lei was terminated by Armenian
authorities in March 2009 and is now in litigation.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors” and Item 3 “Legal Pradiags”, below.
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(4) CHILE PROPERTIES

The Company operates an office in Santiago, CHiliekvis engaged in exploration activities, develepirof mining projects, and acquisition
review. A map showing the location of the propéntfChile (below) and other information about thegerties are located on the Company's
website.

Pureo

The Pureo property is located in south central&;mear Valdivia, and approximately 700 km soutBatiago. The property consists of
approximately 8,200 hectares. The geographic ¢oates of the central part of the property are axipnately 39°00’S and 72°0%/. Acces:
to the property is by paved roads and gravel ro&afsastructure at the site includes electricaivpg cell phone network and road building
equipment. Water, both industrial and potabléréavn from wells. The Company has a hanger anddmér at the property.
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The property is underlain by metamorphic and ctistarocks of Paleozoic age, including sericitbist; black to blue shale, altered
sandstone and andesite. These rocks comprisesieenznt rock assemblage in the area. In geneeak tocks are foliated and, in places,
intruded by granite, granodiorite and dioritic dike

The Pureo property is mainly a placer deposit wiidhbe mined using an open pit. The Compangfaims are National exploitation licen:
which carry definitive rights as long as the feesaid. The Company is required to pay governaidaes are approximately $30,000 per
year. If gold production is more than the $30,000alue, then this amount is refunded. The prigpsrsubject to a 17% Net Profits tax
production. As of December 31, 2010, the Comparsyriot generated any revenue from sales of anyeotnate or other mineralized mate
at the property. As of December 31, 2010, the Gomghas spent approximately $536,000 on miningexypdbration activities at this
property, excluding acquisition and capital costs.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compizmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agreémvégh members of the Quijano family by which MiaeBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios an@dproperties. The name of the joint venture camppg Compania Minera Global Gold
Valdivia S.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV").

Key agreement terms for the Madre De Dios jointtuenagreement include a 1,000,000 euro paymemt @tobal Gold (paid as of October
30, 2007), and the following joint venture termguity interests set at 51%-49% in favor of Globald of the 3 directors, two (Mr.

Krikorian and Dr. Ted Urquhart, Global's Vice Pd&sit in Santiago) are appointed by Global Gold;p@lgsold commits to finance at least
one plant and mining operation within 3 years alb asa mutually agreed exploration program totdith proven reserves, and if that is
successful, two additional plants/operations wélifimanced; and from the profits of the joint vartuGlobal Gold will pay its partner an extra
share based on the following scale of 28 milliorosifor (a) 5 million ounces of gold produced igears or (b) 5 million ounces of gold
proven as reserves according to Canadian 43-1@dlatds in 5 years. The definitions of proven arabpble reserves in NI 43-101 reports
differ from the definitions in SEC Industry Guide Also, the SEC does not recognize the terms “oreasresources and indicated resources”
or “inferred resources” which are used in NI 43-18fiorts. The Company has completed a geologépairt on the property.

On July 24, 2009, Global Gold entered into an ameard with members of the Quijano family (“Quijanad)the October 29, 2007 Global
Gold Valdivia joint venture subject to final boaagdproval on or before July 31, 2009 whereby GGVabez wholly owned by Global Gold
and retained only the Pureo Claims Block (approxatya8,200 hectares), transferring the Madre Des[2laims block to the sole ownership
to members of the Quijano family. On July 28, 200@ amendment was approved by the Company’s lmfafidectors.

Key terms of the amendment included that on orreefaigust 15, 2009, GGV transfer to Quijano ordésignee one hundred percent (10
interest in the current GGV claims identified as adre De Dios Claims Block and Quijano transéeGlobal Gold one hundred perc
(100%) interest in the GGV, or its designee, arel itmaining claims identified as the Pureo ClainiacB All transfers were closed
Santiago, Chile on August 14, 2009 which termindtedjoint venture. If GGV does not commence pmidin on a commercial basis on
property being transferred to its sole control parg to this agreement within two years (subjecirg time taken for permitting purpost
the property shall revert to Quijano.

Quijano shall be entitled a 3% NSR royalty inteiastll metals produced from the properties retaimeGGV up to a maximum of 27 milli
Euros, subject to Quijan®’initial repayment of $200,000 to Global Gold. Floree years, GGV or its designee shall have fat g first
refusal on any bona fide offers for all or any pErthe properties transferred to Quijano (to bereised within five (5) days). For three ye
Quijano shall also have a right of first refusalamy bona fide offers for all or any part of themerties retained by GGV or its designee (t
exercised within twenty (20) days).

On October 27, 2010, the Company entered into aeeagent with Conventus Ltd. a BVI corporation (“@entus”)for the sale of 100
interest in GGV which holds the Pureo mining asgeShile. The Company will provide Conventughwtonsulting services and techn
assistance for development, production, exploratiord expansion of the GGV mining properties irtHfer consideration of the paym
terms below.
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Key terms include that Conventus shall pay $5.0ionilUSD over four years and two months payabldolews: $250,000 on or befc
October 31, 2010; $250,000 on or before Novembe800; $500,000 at the closing on or before M&th2011; $1,000,000 on or bef
December 31, 2011; $1,000,000 on or before DeceRibe?012; $1,000,000 on or before December 313284d $1,000,000 on or befi
December 31, 2014 until $5,000,000 in total hasnbeaid. If the sale does not close, the Compamesponsible for repayment of
$500,000 in payments made prior to closing baseigions contingent upon the reason for the closingot occur. Payments to the Comg
will be secured. As of October 27, 2010, Converttgs shall be solely responsible, at its own expefoseall expenses and other mat
required by contract or law to comply with conditiorelated to the Pureo property, and in particuldéh the July 24, 2009 contract
condition to commence production on a commercialshan the property being transferred to its solgml pursuant to this agreement ol
before August 15, 2011(subject to any time takempérmitting purposes).

As additional consideration, if within seven ye&@snventus or any of its successors produces 18@00ces of gold from the GGV property
or property in Chile which the Company assists G\ onventus in acquiring, then Conventus shadhall cause GGV to pay the Comp:

a one-off and once only $2,500,000 bonus withim&@s of achieving such production. The closingheftransaction is subject to a definitive
agreement and agreement being reached with MiH#mue, with respect to his royalty to the satisfacof Conventus. The closing date is
anticipated to be on or before March 31, 2011. Sdesequent Events for an update on the Pureonyope

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
Ipun Island and Chiloe Island Properties
Ipun Island and Chiloe Island are located in Soutl@hile.

On September 5, 2007, the Company entered intofidenmtial agreement which was made public on Cat@9, 2007, with members of the
Quijano family by which the Company has the optiomarn a 51% interest in the Estrella del Sur &d&tinum project on Ipun Island and
another gold-platinum property on Chiloe Islanda I@arch 31, 2008, this agreement was amended &aimgf the licenses for the Ipun and
Chiloe islands to Global Gold Valdivia in excharfge 250,000 restricted shares of common stock ob@ll Gold Corporation at a fair market
value of $0.23 per share, all as further describdekhibit 10.5 of Form 8-K filed on April 9, 2008.

On October 3, 2008, the Company entered into arskd an agreement to sell all of the Company’sésten its Chiloe and Ipun island
properties in Chile back to the Quijano family 200,000 and certain mining equipment, and othesideration, all as further described in
Exhibit 10.3 of Form 8-K filed on October 8, 2008he Company has no further interest or activitthwespect to these properties.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
Santa Candelaria
Santa Candelaria is located in Comuna de Diegolaeagro, Region Il of Chile.

The Company, on January 15, 2003, entered intgpaordpurchase/lease agreement with Alfredo Sotendaand Adrian Soto Torino for the
purchase of copper gold properties in Chanarakibidtl Chile (the Candelaria 1 to 3, the Santan@alaria 1 to 8 and the Torino | mining
claims 1 through 7 and Torino Il mining claims taihgh 11) (the "Chilean Agreement"). The Companyently refers to all of the properti
acquired by the Chilean Agreement as "Santa Candélahe Agreement was converted into a purchgseesnent on February 4, 2004.

After certain exploration activities, including litad drilling in 2005, the Company determined tih@hould discontinue its exploration
operations at Santa Candelaria, and wrote downviestment. Further, on January 13, 2006, Mineb@&ll entered into a purchase, option,
and royalty agreement with Mr. Adrian Soto Toriagitizen of Chile ("AST") to transfer the miningrecessions Candelaria 1, 2, and 3 to
AST to mine the gold property and pay Minera Gladbaket smelter royalty of 10% until such time andfa Global has been paid $75,000
and thereafter a net smelter royalty of 2% forlifeeof the mine. All liabilities and fees assoedtwith the property are the responsibility of
AST, and Minera Global retains the option to reaegthe mining concession upon 60 days notice ayngnt of 1,000,000 Chilean pesos
(approximately $2,000 USD using exchange rateseaeber 31, 2009).

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
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(5) CANADA PROPERTIES

A map showing the location of the properties in &bmand other information about the propertiedamated on the Company's website. The
Company has phased out its Canadian propertiesnirgg a royalty interest in the Cochrane Pond ergpin Newfoundland.

Grand Lake and Shallow Lake
The Grand Lake and Shallow Lake properties aretéacim the Canadian province of Newfoundland anirador.

In 2007, the Company, through Global Gold Uranigarried out a ground prospecting survey investiggsirborne radiometric anomalies
and lake sediment geochemical anomalies which bad Hetected by earlier surveys carried out byngiosompanies in the 1960s and
1970s. This work was carried out over the six seaclaim blocks situated north and northwest api Valley-Goose Bay, Labrador.

On January 18, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enter&mlari'Labrador Uranium Claims Agreement" with Maesgklexander Turpin and James
Weick to acquire an option to acquire a one hungexdent interest ownership of mineral licensetggit or near Grand Lake (approximately
1,850 acres) and Shallow Lake (approximately 5@&@s). According to the Labrador Uranium Claimse®gnent, Global Gold Uranium
would be solely responsible for exploration and agment during the option periods and can exetieeseption to acquire one hundred
percent of the license rights at either propertgianting the sellers a 1.5% NSR royalty which barbought out for $2,000,000 cash or at
seller's option in common stock of the Company edlat the six month weighted average of the stable dime of exercise. All dollar
references are to Canadian dollars. Global Golahiura would earn a One Hundred Percent (100%) optiche Licenses by paying cash i
common stock (20,000 shares initial deposit). lditaah, Global Gold Uranium completed staking 30diras (approximately 18,531 acres) in
the immediate vicinity of the Grand Lake and Shalleake properties. With respect to the Shallowd #dansaction, the sellers breached a
representation and warranty to keep the licensegiigp force for a period after acquisition, seVefghe licenses lapsed, and Global Gold
Uranium, in its own name, successfully staked #raeslicenses in June 2007. In 2007, the Compangumied sampling and other
exploration activities on these properties, buhaitt conclusive results as to their prospectivithe Company has not issued the initial
20,000 shares of Common Stock of the Company, asghased out of these properties. The licenseséiired as of September 30, 2009.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
Cochrane Pond
The Cochrane Pond property is located in southeastewfoundland, Canada.

On April 12, 2007, Global Gold Uranium entered gnegment to acquire an option for the Cochrane Hoedse area (the "Option
Agreement") with Commander Resources Ltd. ("Commedhdnd Bayswater Uranium Corp. ("Bayswater"). TGaehrane Pond property
consists of 2,600 claims within 61,000 hectarept@amately 150,708 acres). The Agreement is sultgethe conclusion of an option
agreement. Major terms include the following: Glb&old Uranium may earn a 51% equity interest @vperiod of four years in Cochrane
Pond Property by completing; Cash payments of UB®DO0 over four year period; Share issuance ofd®&0shares of Global Gold
Corporation (50 % each to Commander and Bayswtter‘CPJV”")) over a four year period; and Propertpenditures over four year period
of C$3.5 million as further described in exhibita@n Form 8-K filed on April 16, 2007. As of Jug@, 2007, the Company has paid
$200,000 and issued 150,000 shares of the Compammyson stock, 75,000 shares each to CommandeBaysivater.

On October 17, 2008, the parties terminated théo®gtgreement, and Global Gold Uranium entered artagreement (the “Royalty
Agreement”) with Commander and Bayswater pertaininthe Cochrane Pond property. The Royalty Agesgrgrants the Company a
royalty in the Cochrane Pond property and termm#tie Company’s existing rights and obligation®eisded with the Cochrane Pond
property. The key terms of the Royalty Agreemeatthat the CPJV shall provide a royalty to the @any for uranium produced from the
Cochrane Pond property in the form of a 1% grosslgetion royalty from the sale of uranium concetaisgyellowcake) capped at CDN
$1million after which the royalty shall be redudech 0.5% royalty. In consideration for the royathe Company shall pay $50,000 cash,
$25,000 each to Bayswater and Commander withina38,dall as further described in exhibit 10.3 offf@-K filed on October 22,

2008. As of November 13, 2008, the Company laés $25,000 each to Bayswater and Commander.

See Item 1A “Risk Factors”, below.
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(6) ENVIRONMENT AND ETHICAL MATTERS

The Company's policy on environmental mattersatestin its Code of Business Conduct and Ethicscfwis posted on the Company’s
website), and requires compliance with all relevawss and regulations. The Company’s Insider Trgdind Public Information Policy,
Charter of the Audit Committee of the Board of Bias, Charter of the Compensation Committee oBtb&rd of Directors, and its
Nominating and Governance Charter are also postets avebsite and require compliance with all raleaws and regulations. Specifica
the Company intends to conduct its business inr@nerathat is compatible with the balanced enviromiaeand economic needs of the
communities in which it operates. In 2007, the @any instituted a whistleblower program to encoaregporting of any non compliance
with such policies and procedures.

The Company is committed to continuous effortsripriove environmental performance throughout itgagiens. Accordingly, the
Company's policy is to: comply with internationtdrsdards as developed by the World Bank; compli wittapplicable environmental laws
and regulations and apply responsible standardsenées and regulations do not exist; assess @jpis which will include a review of the
environmental issues associated with project deveémt; make available these assessments to thepajae government agencies for rev
and approval; encourage concern and respect fambieonment; emphasize every employee's respdibsibi environmental and safety
performance; foster appropriate operating practcektraining; manage its business with the gdatseventing incidents and controlling
emissions and wastes to below harmful levels; desigerate, and maintain facilities to this endpnd quickly and effectively to incidents
resulting from its operations, in cooperation witdustry organizations and authorized governmeaheigs; and undertake appropriate
reviews and evaluations of its operations to meaptwgress and to foster compliance with theseiesli The Company had budgeted
approximately $30,000 for environmental compliaimc2010 which remain unexpended as of the dathisffiling. The cost for the
Company to maintain environmental compliance hasrftasubstantial limitation or restriction upon aibility to carry out our mining
operations.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the following riskcfars together with all of the other informatiomtained in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K before making an investment decision with respectur common stock. Any of the following risles well as other risks and uncertainties
described in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, cduddim our business, financial condition and rexfligperations and could adversely
affect the value of our Common Stock.

EXPLORATION STAGE COMPANY

The Company did not engage in the active conduattcdide or business aside from development andm@tipn activities, it has not
generated any revenues to date, with the excepfioevenue from the transaction with Iberian Resesrat the end of 2006 and minimal s
of concentrate from Tukhmanuk. Although the Conyparaintains mining licenses in Armenia and hasrkeseaccording to the laws of
Armenia, the Company has not established proverpestzhble reserves, in accordance per SEC IndGatige 7, at any of it's properties
(please refer to the “Cautionary Note to U.S. Inees on page 3 of this report). The Company may enasprbblems, delays, expenses
difficulties typically encountered in the developmstage, many of which may be outside of the Camigsacontrol. These problems include
but are not limited to issues interpreting and prg\historical mining data, obtaining and maintagguality equipment, licensing difficultie
and financing problems.

LIQUIDITY RISK — GOING CONCERN

The Company needs additional funds in order to aohdny active mining development and productioarafions in the foreseeable future.
Especially in light of the international financi&isis starting in 2008, there can be no assurtirateany financing for acquisitions or future
projects will be available for such purposes ot suech financing, if available, would be on terragdrable or acceptable to the Company.
such, our independent registered public accouritimghas concluded that additional revenue arrareggmor financing is needed to enabl
to fund our future operations, which raises suliithabout our ability to operate as a going concand accordingly has included this
uncertainty in their report on our December 31,®@64nsolidated financial statements.
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COMPETITION

There is intense competition in the mining indusiitge Company is competing with larger mining conmips, many of which have
substantially greater financial strengths, andtehpinarketing and personnel resources than thossegsed by the Company. Although the
Company competes with multi-national mining companwhich have substantially greater resources anbars of employees, the
Company’s long term presence and the expertis&kiaowledge of its personnel in Armenia and in Chilew it to compete with companies
with greater resources.

NEED FOR KEY PERSONNEL

The Company presently has officers and operatiomagers intimately familiar with the operation ofnimg projects or the development of
such projects and with experience in former Sosgeintries and South America. While the Company ada¢dbelieve the loss of any director
or officer of the Company will materially and adsely affect its long-term business prospects, dae bf any of the Company's senior
personnel might potentially adversely affect thenpany until a suitable replacement could be fodid: Company continues to employ
independent consultants and engineers, and emibloysgh subsidiaries personnel with mining, geojamd related backgrounds in
Armenia, and in Chile.

MANAGEMENT SALARIES

As of December 31, 2010, the Company owes unpagesvaf approximately $740,000 to management. Tdragany is accruing interest
an annual rate of 9% on the net of taxes wages dwadanagement. As of December 31, 2010, the Coynpad accrued interest
approximately $48,000. The Compasyailure to remain current in its salary obligagoexposes the Company to the potential loss c
personnel.

TRADING MARKET

The Company's Common Stock is traded on the OTCxgBange of the OTC Market. As a result, our stotddas may find it more difficult
to buy or sell shares of our common stock tharoiile be if our stock were listed on a national sities exchange.

LACK OF INSURANCE PROTECTION
The Company may not be able to obtain adequateanse protection for its foreign investments.
FLUCTUATION IN MINERAL PRICES

The prices of gold and other minerals historicélllgtuate and are affected by numerous factors heylee Company's control and no
assurance can be given that any reserves provestiorated will actually be produced.

MINING RISKS

The Company's proposed mining operations will bgesit to a variety of potential engineering, setsamd other risks, some of which cannot
be predicted and which may not be covered by imsga

There are risks inherent in the exploration fod davelopment of, mineral deposits. The businessining by its nature involves significant
risks and hazards, including environmental hazandisistrial incidents, labor disputes, dischargéogfc chemicals, fire, cave ins, drought,
flooding and other acts of God.

The occurrence of any of these can delay or inp¢eMploration and production, increase exploratind production costs and result in
liability to the owner or operator of the mine. TBempany may become subject to liability for pabator other hazards against which it has
not insured or cannot insure, including those gpeet of past mining activities for which it wag nesponsible.

MINING CONCESSIONS, PERMITS AND LICENSES

The Company's mining and processing activitiesdagendant upon the grant of appropriate licensegassions, leases, permits and
regulatory consents which may be withdrawn or madsect to limitations. Although the Company beéisthat the licenses, concessions,
leases, permits and consents it holds will be rexkevw required, when they expire, according to¢heent laws applicable in the respective
countries, subject to the licensing issues disddmdow in "Foreign Risks," there can be no asutedhat they will be renewed or as to the



terms of any such renewal. Mineral rights withie ttountries in which the Company is currently opegaare state-owned. Also see
discussion under Foreign Risks and Item 3. “Legat®edings,” below.
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EXPLORATION RISKS

Minerals exploration is speculative in nature, imes many risks and frequently is unsuccessfulr@lean be no assurance that any
mineralization discovered will result in an increas the proven and probable reserves of the Compfareserves are developed, it can tal
number of years from the initial phases of drillemgd identification of mineralization until prodiar is possible, during which time the
economic feasibility of production may change. Sabtal expenditures are required to establishreserves through drilling, to determine
metallurgical processes to extract metals fromamiét in the cases of new properties, to constrigiignand processing facilities. As a result
of these uncertainties, no assurance can be diagitite exploration programs undertaken by the Gommvill result in any new commercial
mining operations being brought into operation.

FOREIGN RISKS

The value of the Company's assets may be adveaffelited by political, exchange rate, economic aiher factors in Chile, Canada and
Armenia. Armenia is a former Soviet country in g#ion, and presents concomitant risks. In paréicuih the past, the Company has
experienced delays in the bureaucratic proceshas@xperienced dealings with corrupt officialthatMinistry of Environment and Natural
Resources in Armenia. The Company practices ataégrance program on corruption.

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corrutiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeahd Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidme Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and m thited States. Although the Minister took theipms that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuiffidials assured the Company to the contrary Amdenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compasceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prtipgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On November2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preregaito filing for international arbitration undéré 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagpm@viously undisclosed principal, Mr. AyvazianeT@ompany filed for arbitration
under the rules under the International Chamb&ashmerce, headquartered in Paris, France, ("IC&D@cember 29, 2006. The forum for
this arbitration is New York City, and the hearisgurrently still pending. On June 25, 2008, Feeleral District Court for the Southern
District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvazian wasqred to appear as a respondent in the ICC atibitraOn September 5, 2008, the ICC
International Court of Arbitration ruled that Mry@azian shall be a party in accordance with thesitat rendered on June 25, 2008 by the
Federal District Court for the Southern DistrictN#w York. In addition and based on the US Armdilateral Investment Treaty, Global
Gold Mining filed a request for arbitration agaitis® Republic of Armenia for the actions of thenfier Minister of Environment and Natural
Resources with the International Centre for Settletnof Investment Disputes, which is a componerhayg of the World Bank in
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&ugust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdestt they have suspended the ICSID arbitration pgndonclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfiabment in principle, and anticipate that thalfsettlement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The Compaaylearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Gollen LLC, which was granted an illegal and compgticense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligati@sssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As lofueey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagrteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does fietiethe pending ICC arbitration involving simiksubject matter.

NO DIVIDENDS
The Company currently anticipates that it will ietall of its future earnings, if any, for use ta bperations and does not anticipate paying

cash dividends in the near term future. There eandoassurance that the Company will pay cashalind at any time, or that the failure to
pay dividends for periods of time will not advessaffect the market price for the Company's Comi8tock.
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CONTROL OF THE COMPANY

Drury J. Gallagher, the Chairman Emeritus, Treas@ecretary, and Director, and Van Z. Krikoriatma@man, Chief Executive Officer, and
Director, own 2,640,786 (3.33%), and 3,150,0008%¥shares, respectively, or a total of 5,790, 7881(%) shares, out of the 79,190,475
shares of the Company's Common Stock issued asthading as of December 31, 2010. The two Compéioers, director Nicholas J.
Aynilian who owns 2,053,873 (2.59%) and NJA Investits, which is controlled by Nicholas J. Ayniliamwns 1,400,000 (1.77%) shares of
Common Stock, entered into a shareholders agreenesetd January 1, 2004, that provides for eatheoparties to the Agreement to vote
such individuals as directors.

lan Hague, a Company director and Firebird MangendrC manager, owns a total of 33,781,748 (42.66%@res, Firebird Management,
LLC owns a total of 16,865,034 (21.30%) shareq] Rersistency Capital owns a total of 2,000,0083%), out of the 79,190,475 shares, of
the Company's Common Stock issued and outstandin§ Becember 31, 2010.

If these stockholders act in concert, they couldtiad matters requiring approval by our stockhosdéncluding the election of directors and
could have the ability to prevent or cause a cagotransaction, even if other stockholders, opposé action. The concentration of voting
power could also have the effect of delaying ovprging a change in control which could cause tasksprice to decline.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not Applicable
ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTIES

The Company rented office space in a commerciddlingj at 45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT whesigned a 5-year lease starting
on March 1, 2006 at a starting annual rental cb$4d,200. On October 1, 2006, the Company expaitdeidfice space by assuming the le
of the adjacent office space. The assumed leaskehathen one year remaining, through Septemhe2(IB, at an annual rental cost of
$19,500. The assumed lease was extended for @oadtyear through September 30, 2009 at an dmeutal cost of $22,860 for that
period. The assumed lease was further extendedghrOctober 15, 2009 at which point the Comparoated the additional space. Messrs.
Gallagher and Krikorian gave personal guarante¢seo€ompany's performance for the first two yedrthe lease. The lease terminated on
March 31, 2011 and the Company entered a new Skyase starting on April 1, 2011 at a starting @hmental cost of $63,045. The new
lease is for office space in a commercial buildi&55 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Rye, NY 10580.

For a description of the mining properties in whith Company has an interest, see Item 1 "Deswmnijgi Business."
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corrutiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeahd Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidre Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and i tinited States. Although the Minister took theipas that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuiffiadials assured the Company to the contrary Adenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compasceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prtipgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On NovembeR2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preredaito filing for international arbitration unddrd 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagpmviously undisclosed principal, Mr. AyvazianeT@ompany filed for

arbitration under the rules under the Internati@f@mber of Commerce, headquartered in Paris cErgtiCC") on December 29, 2006. The
forum for this arbitration is New York City, andethearing is currently still pending. On June ZH)8, the Federal District Court for the
Southern District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvari was required to appear as a respondent in thatlitration. On September 5, 2008,
the ICC International Court of Arbitration ruledatiMr. Ayvazian shall be a party in accordance i decision rendered on June 25, 2008
by the Federal District Court for the Southern Bistof New York. In addition and based on the Ai@enia Bilateral Investment Treaty,
Global Gold Mining filed a request for arbitratiagainst the Republic of Armenia for the actionshef former Minister of Environment and
Natural Resources with the International CentreSfettlement of Investment Disputes, which is a congmt agency of the World Bank
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&ugust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdestt they have suspended the ICSID arbitration pgndonclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfieement in principle, and anticipate that thelfgettiement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The CompaasyIearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Gollen LLC, which was granted an illegal and compgticense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligati@sssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As lofueey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagrteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does rietiathe pending ICC arbitration involving simikubject matter.

On June 17, 2010, Global Gold Corporation andutssiliary Global Gold Mining, LLC (collectively “@Gbal”) and Caldera Resources,
(“Caldera”) announced TSX- approval of their March 24, 2010 joint ventureregment to explore and bring the Marjan propertp
commercial production. As previously reported, pheperty is held with a twenty-five year “speaiaining license, effective April 22, 200
and expiring April 22, 2033, which expanded the@plicense term and substantially increased tlenie area. The license required payn
of annual governmental fees and the performarfiogook at the property as submitted and approvethe& mining plan which includ
mining of 150,000 tonnes of mineralized rock betwderil 22, 2008 and April 21, 2011, as well as lexation work to have additior
reserves approved under Armenian Law in order totaia the licenses in good standing. CalderasmatliGlobal as well as governme
authorities that it would not be complying with tlverk requirements which prompted 90 day termimatiotices from the government and
October 7, 2010 joint venture termination noticenir Global, which Global had agreed to keep the it&tion notice confidential un
October 15, 2010.

The joint venture agreement provided that Caldevaldvbe solely responsible for license complianed eonducting the approved min
plan, and that 1[n the event that Caldera does not, or is otherwisable to, pursue this project and pay to Gl@wmtl the amounts provid
for hereunder, Caldera’s rights to the Property liedshares of Marja@aldera Mining LLC shall be forfeited and repladgda Net Smelte
Royalty (the “NSR”).” Caldera did not meet the thineld to earn any NSR under the agreement, ambiise of license nogempliance &
well as its failure to pay resulted in an autom#itnination of its rights by operation of the agreent. The agreement provided that Cal
would deliver 500,000 of its shares to Global, jsgbto final approvals of this agreement by theXTW&nture Exchange.The TSX Ventur
Exchange approval was issued in June and Caldiéed fa deliver the shares. Subject to a 30 dagresion if it could not raise the funds
capital markets, Caldera agreed to make a $30(h@9Ment to the Company on September 30, 2010 acdrbeer 31, 2010; $250,000
March 30, 2011, June 30, 2011, September 30, 2D&&ember 30, 2011, March 30, 2012, June 30, 204@,September 30, 2012; ¢
$500,000 on December 31, 2012. Caldera raisetti®uff funds, but did not make these payments.
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In addition, Global's October 7, 2010 terminatiastioe noted Caldera’s illegal behavior in registgrcharter changes harmful to and without
the consent of Global, material misrepresentat@mtechnical and other matters, and more. Caloféi@als have also engaged in behavior
at odds with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act,alithe Company has reported to Armenian and US Bowent officials. Caldera officials
are currently under criminal investigation, and lezlbhas brought an action pending in Armenian ctmucbrrect Caldera’s illegal re-
registration of share in Armenia. Separately,dtisran arbitration pending in New York wherebydea is seeking confirmation through the
American Arbitration Association of the joint venéls existence, and Global is seeking $850,00&ofteed but unpaid amounts at the
contractual rate of 10% interest, the 500,000 shafstock Caldera failed to deliver in June 2Cf] damages for Caldera’s other breaches,
non-performance, and attacks on Global.

The Company is aware that another company basddrig Kong began publicly trading shares in the With the name Globalgold
Corp. The Company'’s counsel has sent the othepanyna cease and desist letter for using the simédme and request that it change its
name.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgkclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respeatthese actions will not materially affect the C@nyp's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations. The Company has been btdagiourt by several disgruntled former employaed contractors for unpaid salaries and
invoices, respectively, as well as some penaltesdn payment which totals approximately $350,008e Company has recorded a liability
for the actual unpaid amounts due to these indal&laf approximately $130,000 as of December 31020rhe Company is currently, and
will continue to, vigorously defending its positioncourts against these claims that are withouitm@&he Company is also negotiating
directly with these individuals outside of the dsuin attempt to settle based on the amounts cii¢heal amounts due as recorded by the
Company in exchange for prompt and full payment.

PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND SMALL
BUSINESS

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

(a) Shares of the Company's Common Stock tradbe®TC Bulletin Board (OTCQB) under the symbol "GBGThe range of high and
low bid information for each quarterly period d@if009 and 2010 were as follows:

2009 2010
Quarter High* Low* High* Low*
1st $ 0.2C $ 0.0t $ 0.2C $ 0.0¢
2nd $ 0.2C $ 0.0t $ 0.1¢ $ 0.0z
3rd $ 0.2C $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1¢ $ 0.04
4th $ 0.2¢ $ 0.1C $ 03z $ 0.0¢

* These quotations reflect inter-dealer prices withretail mark-up, mark-down or commissions, araymot reflect actual
transactions. Source: Yahoo Finance
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As of April 13, 2011, the Company had 79,190,4&uésl and outstanding shares of its Common Stook.ddmpany's transfer agen
American Registrar and Transfer Company, with efiat 342 E. 900 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 84hatjng a telephone number of (8
363-9065.

(b) As of April 13, 2011, there were approximat&|283 holders of record of shares of the Compadgamon Stock.

(c) The following table provides information abaltares of our Common Stock that may be issued tipoexercise of options and rig
under existing equity compensation plans as of Bz 31, 2010.

Remaining availabl

for
Number of Securitie  Weighted average issuance under
to exercise equity
be issued upon
exercise price of outstanding compensation plans
of oustanding
options, options, warrants ai (excluding securitie
reflected in column
warrants and rights rights (@)
Plan Category @) # (b) (B) (c)®
Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrsldl) 2,994,167 $0.52 5,833
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechatgers 0 0 0
Total: 2,994,167 5,833

(1) The Company's 2006 Stock Incentive PlgdnJune 15, 2006, the Company's stockholders apgrine Global Gold Corporation 20
Stock Incentive Plan (the "2006 Stock IncentivenPlainder which a maximum of 3,000,000 shares ah@on Stock may be issued
(subject to adjustment for stock splits, divideads the like). The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan regdabe Company's Option Plan of
1995 which terminated in June 2005. The Compar0$ BStock Incentive Plan has a ten - year termvatéxpire on June 15, 2016.
On June 15, 2006, the Company granted optionsy®560,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise pf $1.70 per share, to the
then Chairman and CEO, Drury Gallagher. On Jun086, the Company also granted options to buyd&Pshares of common stock,
at an exercise price of $1.70 per share, to therGiter, Jan Dulman. On September 18, 2006, the [i2om granted options to buy
200,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise pfi§1.25 per share, to the then Chief Operatifiged, Michael T. Mason. On
January 1, 2007, the Company granted options tBB1884 shares of common stock, at an exercise pfi$0.88 per share, to the
Senior Vice President for Exploration and Developtelrayr Agnerian. On January 11, 2007, the Camgaanted options to each
the five directors to buy 100,000 (500,000 tothBres of common stock, at an exercise price ofébpe8 share. On June 15, 2007, the
Company granted options to buy 116,666 sharesmafmmn stock, at an exercise price of $0.83 per shatbe Senior Vice President
for Exploration and Development, Hrayr Agneriann fune 15, 2007, the Company granted options tdlb0y000 shares of common
stock, at an exercise price of $0.83 per shartegdhief Financial Officer, Jan Dulman. On Jufe2ZD07, Michael T. Mason, the
Company’s President, resigned from his positionfanigited options to buy 100,000 shares of commstogk, at an exercise price of
$1.25 and his additional vested options to buy @@ shares of common stock have expired unexereised December 31, 2008. On
October 1, 2007, the Company granted options tollsy@00 shares of common stock, at an exercise pfi§1.00 per share, to a
consultant, Paul Airasian, which expired on Decen®ie 2009. On April 8, 2008, the Company grardptions to each of the five
directors to buy 100,000 (500,000 total) sharesoofimon stock, at an exercise price of $0.45 paresh@n March 31, 2009, three
months after the termination of his employment,yiragnerian’s vested options to buy 200,000 shafessmmon stock have expired
unexercised according to the terms of his employragreement.
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On May 18, 2009, the Company granted options th edthe five directors to buy 100,000 (500,00@kpshares of common stock,
at an exercise price of $0.20 per share. On MayQ89, pursuant to Mr. Gallagher's employment agerg extension under his
contract and as confirmed by the independent cosgtim committee and board of directors, Mr. Gddtagvas granted stock
options to purchase 166,667 shares of common siitle Company at $0.20 per share vesting on Noeerh®, 2009. On May 18,
2009, the Company granted to Courtney FellowesCitrapany’s Vice President of Business Developmedtlavestor Relations,
stock options to purchase 100,000 shares of constomk of the Company at $0.20 per share vestinguoe 18, 2009. On August
12, 2009, the Company granted to Jan Dulman, theepaay’s Chief Financial Officer, stock optionspiarchase 225,000 shares of
common stock of the Company at $0.14 per sharebass the closing price at his renewal) vestinggoal quarterly installments
over the term of his employment agreement. On 19n€010, the Company granted options to eacheofite directors to buy
100,000 (500,000 total) shares of common stocknaixercise price of $0.10 per share. On JuneQ®,Dbursuant to Mr.
Gallagher's employment agreement extension undecdmtract and as confirmed by the independent easgiion committee and
board of directors, Mr. Gallagher was granted stmutkons to purchase 100,000 shares of common stioitle Company at $0.10 ¢
share vesting on November 19, 2010. On Octobe2d40, the Company granted options to buy 40,0@8eshof common stock, at
an exercise price of $0.25 per share, to a comguRaul Airasian, which vest on December 31, 28i@ expire on December 31,
2012.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLA N OF OPERATION

The following discussion and analysis of our finahcondition and results of operations shoulddsdrin conjunction with our financial
statements and related notes included elsewhenési‘\nnual Report on Form 10-K.

When used in this report, the words "expect(sgelfs)", "believe(s)", "will", "may", "anticipate(sand similar expressions are intended to
identify forward-looking statements. Such stateraeme subject to certain risks and uncertaintidésshwcould cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected. Readers are caatiaot to place undue reliance on these forwarklihg statements, and are urged to
carefully review and consider the various disclesuglsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
COMPARISON OF TWELVE-MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND TWELVE-MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

During the twelve-month period ended December 8102the Company's administrative and other exmenwsee $1,762,848 which
represented a decrease of $338,844 from $2,151h882 same period last year. The expense decvesserimarily attributable to lower
stock compensation expense of $274,480 less tlegpribr year’'s period, compensation expense of¥Bllless than the prior year's period,
rent expense of $42,446 less than the prior ygar®d, insurance expense of $18,505 less thapribeyear’s period and travel expenses of
$12,984 less than the prior year's period, offselelgal fees of $164,525 higher than the prior \sgeriod.

During the twelve-month period ended Decembe2810, the Company's mine exploration costs wer® 82B which represented an
increase of $54,370 from $665,453 in the same gdaist year. The expense increase was primarifipatable to the increased mining
activity at the Tukhmanuk property of $268,331 effby decreased mining activity at the Marjan propef $112,615, the Getik property of
$46,907, and at the Chilean property of $54,439.

During the twelve-month period ended December 8102the Company's amortization and depreciatigeeses were $1,035,751 which
represented a decrease of $127,902 from $1,168)858 same period last year. The expense decvessprimarily attributable to the
decreased depreciation expense of $127,894.

During the twelve-month period ended December 8102the Company had interest expenses of $663vRich represented an increase of
$103,812 from $559,407 in the same period last. y&he expense increase was attributable to araserin interest expense of $146,380
secured line of credit in Armenia due to additiobafrowings offset by a decrease in interest expen$41,159 on note payable to directors
due to the director loans being converted to sto@Bctober 2010.
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During the twelve-month period ended December 8102the Company had revenue of $358,467 whiclesemted an increase of $221,826
from $136,641 in the same period last year. Theegse in revenue is primarily attributable torsréase in sales of gold concentrate of
$221,826 from the Tukhmanuk property.

The Company had a gain from a nonrefundable depositjoint venture in 2010 of $100,000 compared ¢@in from a nonrefundable
deposit on a joint venture in 2009 of $50,000.

The Company had interest income of $6,758 in 204ighwrepresented an increase of $6,603 from $1&6 the same period last year. The
increase is attributable to higher average casimbalin the Armenia bank accounts.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company continues to experience liquidity arajes.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company's total assats $6,011,106, of which $14,083 consisted ofi caxash equivalents.
The Company's expected plan of operation for thenciar year 2011 is:

(a) To implement the joint venture agreement witmgblidated Resources USA, LLC, to expand the Tk plant capacity to 300,000
tonnes per year, to continue and to expand goldséwel production at the Tukhmanuk property in &mra, to generate income from offer
services from the ISO certified lab operating akfimanuk, and to continue to explore this propestgdnfirm historical reserve reports, and
to explore and develop Marjan, Getik and other ngrproperties in Armenia and to generate cash 8od establish gold, silver and other
reserves;

(b) To implement the sale agreement with Convebhtdsat the Pureo property in Chile;
(c) To review and acquire additional mineral beguimoperties in Chile, Armenia, and other countréew
(d) Pursue additional financing through privatecplaents, debt and/or joint ventures.

The Company retained the right until December 80920 elect to participate at a level of up to 20%h Sterlite Gold Ltd. or any of its
affiliates in any exploration project undertakerAirmenia. This agreement is governed by New Yovk dad includes New York courts as
choice of forum. On October 2, 2008edanta Resources Plc announced that its tendartoftake control of Sterlite Gold Ltd. was sucfel
which made it a successor to the twenty percenicigaation with Sterlite Gold Ltd. In September Z0¥edanta (and Sterlite) announced that
they had closed a stock sale transaction with Gadfing Ltd., which made GeoProMining Ltd. andatfiliates the successors to the 20%
participation right. The Company is now reviewlegal options to enforce the 20% right.

The Company retains the right to participate upa®o in any new projects undertaken by the Armen@mpany Sipan 1, LLC and succes:
to and affiliates of Iberian Resources Limited, ethmerged with Tamaya Resources Limited, in Armeumigil August 15, 2015. In addition,
the Company has a 2.5% NSR royalty on productiomfthe Lichkvaz-Tei and Terterasar mines as wefifaa any mining properties in a 20
kilometer radius of the town of Aigedzor in southérmenia. On February 28, 2007, Iberian Resoutg@ited announced its merger with
Tamaya Resources Limited. However, as of Dece®bg2008, Iberian Resources and Tamaya filed fokhgptcy in Australia and the
Company has taken action to protect its rights20@9, the bankruptcy administrators sold the shaf&ipan 1, LLC to Terranova Overseas
company organized in the United Arab Emirates whim information and belief, includes local antefgn investors and which also
assumes the continuing obligations of Sipan 1, kb Global Gold.

The Company also anticipates spending additiomad$un Armenia and Chile for further exploratiordatevelopment of its other properties
as well as acquisition of new properties. The Camyps also reviewing new technologies in explaratnd processing. The Company
anticipates that it will issue additional equityd®bt to finance its planned activities. The Conypanticipates that it might obtain additional
financing from the holders of its Warrants to pash 4,750,000 shares of Common Stock of the Cormgtaany exercise price of $0.15 per
share, which expire on December 9, 2013. TheseaNarwere amended to an exercise price of $0.46h@ee. On October 25, 2010, in
connection with the aforementioned warrants, then@any had 2,500,000 warrants exercised, out of40D® warrants available, for a total
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of $250,000. The shares were issued pursuanetexttmptions from registration requirements ofSkeurities Act under Regulation D ba
upon representations and covenants provided bsefipective purchasers. The Company anticipatéshthdalance of the 4,750,000 warri
will be exercised which will provide for an additial $225,000 but these warrants have not beeniegdras of the date of this filing.

The Company may engage in research and developelated to exploration and processing at Tukhmathwkng 2011, and anticipates
purchasing processing plant and equipment assets.

The Company has received a going concern opinam fts independent public accounting firm. Thisamethat our auditors believe that
there is doubt that we can continue as an on-gmisgness for the next twelve months unless we eadsitional capital to pay our bills. This
is because the Company has not generated any stiéistavenues. The Company has been able torembased upon its receipt of funds
from the issuance of equity securities and by agtgiassets or paying expenses by issuing stotit, desale of assets. The Company's
continued existence is dependent upon its contiabdidy to raise funds through the issuance ofisities. Management's plans in this regard
are to obtain other financing until profitable oggon and positive cash flow are achieved and raaiad.

See “Subsequent Events” section for informatiorardimg funding from Consolidated Resources USA, | a@elaware company (“CR8nc
Conventus Ltd., a BVI corporation (“Conventus”)edides these two fundings, there are no firm comenits from third parties to provide
additional financing and the Company needs additiumds in order to conduct any active mining depment and production operations in
the foreseeable future. Especially in light of iternational financial crisis starting in 2008eth can be no assurance that any financing for
acquisitions or future projects will be availabdée §uch purposes or that such financing, if avéglalvould be on terms favorable or accept
to the Company.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Stock Based Compensation - The Company periodicalyes shares of Common Stock for services reddertor financing costs. Such
shares are valued based on the market price dretigaction date. The Company periodically isstiesk options and warrants to employees
and non-employees in non-capital raising transastfor services and for financing costs.

The Company accounts for the grant of stock andaméawards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Cameption — Stock Compensation
(“ASC 718"). ASC 718 requires companies to recagrin the statement of operations the grant-datedtue of warrants and stock options
and other equity based compensation.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was deuetifor use in estimating the fair value of tradptions that have no restrictions and are
fully transferable. In addition, option models u&g the input of highly subjective assumptionduding the expected stock price volatility.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 200®sseand loss per share include the actual dedufdir stock-based compensation
expense. The total stock-based compensation expente years ended December 31, 2010 and 200%$%&& 712 and $419,192,
respectively. The expense for stock-based compensata non-cash expense item.

Comprehensive Income - The Company has adoptedTRfp@ 220, "Comprehensive Income.” Comprehensigerme is comprised of net

income (loss) and all changes to stockholdersteddeéficit), except those related to investmentstockholders, changes in paid-in capital
and distribution to owners.
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The following table summarizes the computation®meding net loss to comprehensive loss for theyeaded December 31, 2010 and 2!

Year Ending December 31,

2010 2009
Net loss $ (3,842,60) $  (4,320,56)
Unrealized gain arising during year $ (237,430 $ (499,109
Comprehensive loss $ (4,080,03) $ (4,819,66)

Acquisition, Exploration and Development CostMlineral property acquisition costs are capitalizAdditionally, mine development co
incurred either to develop new ore deposits andstrocting new facilities are capitalized until oggons commence. All such capitali:
costs are amortized using a straight-line basia tange from 1t0 years, based on the minimum original licensa t&r acquisition, but do r
exceed the useful life of the capitalized costgpotdcommercial development of an ore body, theieqple capitalized costs would then
amortized using the units-gkoduction method. Exploration costs, costs iredito maintain current production or to maintaisess on
standby basis are charged to operations. Costbarfdoned projects are charged to operations upgmdanment. The Company evalue
at least quarterly, the carrying value of capitdiznining costs and related property, plant andpegent costs, if any, to determine if th
costs are in excess of their net realizable vaheeia permanent impairment needs to be recordée: periodic evaluation of carrying va
of capitalized costs and any related property, tpdand equipment costs are based upon expectedloashand/or estimated salvage valu
accordance with ASC Topic 360, "Accounting for thgpairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Management red@md evaluates the net carrying value of allitaesl, including idle facilities, for
impairment at least annually, or upon the occuresfoother events or changes in circumstancesntiaate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. We estimate the net rdédizaalue of each property based on the estimatdcounted future cash flows that will
be generated from operations at each propertyedtimated salvage value of the surface plant anghegnt and the value associated with
property interests. All assets at an operating segjare evaluated together for purposes of estigdtiture cash flows.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The Company does not hold any market risk sensitisiguments nor does it have any foreign currena@hange agreements. The Company
maintains an inventory of unprocessed ore and gamhtentrate which are carried on the balance stseet December 31, 2010 at $560,560
and $3,994, respectively, and unprocessed ore @dd:gncentrate of $772,298 and $32,855, respdgtias of December 31, 2009 with our
Armenian subsidiary Mego-Gold LLC. The Companysinet maintain any commodity hedges or futuresngements with respect to this
unprocessed ore.

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisigypally of cash. The Company places
its cash with high credit quality financial institbns in the United States and Armenia. Bank diégpasthe United States did not exceed
federally insured limits as of December 31, 2010 Becember 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2010 awDber 31, 2009, the Company
had approximately $9,866 and $250, respectivelrinenian bank deposits and $859 and $21,000, césply, in Chilean bank deposits,
which may not be insured. The Company has not é&pezd any losses in such accounts through Dece®ih@010 and as of the date of 1
filing.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia and Chile. As with all types of intational business operations, currency

fluctuations, exchange controls, restrictions arifgn investment, changes to tax regimes, poliiciibn and political instability could impair
the value of the Company's investments.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited consolidated financial statements ®Qbmpany, notes thereto and report of Indeper@eriified Public Accountants thereon
for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2010 amémber 31, 2009, by Sherb & Co, LLP, are attachedth as a part of, and at the end of,
this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not Applicable

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedurg

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresléfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promulgateger the Security Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)) that arggded to ensure that information that would be egflito be disclosed in Exchange Act
reports is recorded, processed, summarized andteepwithin the time periods specified in the Sé&e@s and Exchange Commission’s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulateicommunicated to our management, includindPtiesident and Chief Operating
Officer and Senior Vice President and Chief Finah@ifficer (our Principal Executive Officer and Reipal Financial Officer, respectively),
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regardieqguired disclosure.

As of December 31, 2010, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatibour management, including the
Principal Executive Officer and Principal Finand@fficer, of the effectiveness of the design andrafion of our disclosure controls and
procedures. Based on the foregoing, our Pring&paktutive Officer and Principal Financial Officesncluded that our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of the end of theoderovered by this Annual Report.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We are responsible for establishing and maintainithgguate internal control over financial reportigs defined in the securities laws,
internal control over financial reporting is a pegs designed by, or under the supervision of, dacipal Executive and Principal Financial
Officers and effected by our Board of Directors nagement, and other personnel, to provide reasem@aslirance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles and includes those policies and procesithiat (i) pertain to the maintenance of recdndsin reasonable detail accurately and fi
reflect the transactions and dispositions of ogets (ii) provide reasonable assurance that tcéinga are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordanite generally accepted accounting principles, dnad dur receipts and expenditures are
being made only in accordance with authorizatidn®@nagement and directors; and (iii) provide readte assurance regarding prevention
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisitiong as disposition of our assets that could have terad effect on the financial statements.

The Company's internal control over financial réjmgyis designed to provide reasonable assuramgaeding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external reporting purposes in accordandk generally accepted accounting
principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Therefore, even those
systems determined to be effective can provide mdgonable assurance with respect to financiemtnt preparation and

presentation. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechiorisk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degfreompliance with the policies or procedures metgeriorate.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effentige of the internal controls over financial rejpgr{as defined in Rule 13a-15(f)

promulgated under the Exchange Act) as of Dece®be?010, based on the framework in Internal Comttegrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thea@ltvay Commission.
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Management, including the Principal Executive andd®al Financial Officers, based on their evaluabf the Company's internal control
over financial reporting, have concluded that tleenpany's internal control over financial reportimgs effective as of December 31, 2010.

This annual report does not include an attestaport of the Company's registered public accogrfim regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management's report was nbject to attestation by the Company's registetddipaccounting firm pursuant to Section
404(c) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

(b) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repating

There have been no changes in the Company's ihtmmtol over financial reporting that occurredtiire fourth fiscal quarter that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, the Company's internal control ofieancial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable.
PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

The information required by this Item 10 is incorgted by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténedating to the 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 10, 2011.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incorgied by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténaéating to the 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 10, 2011.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning required by this Itemid thcorporated by reference from the Companyisy6tatement relating to the 2011
Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be beldr around June 10, 2011.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incaorgted by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténedating to the 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 10, 2011.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incorgied by reference from the Company's Proxy Staténaéating to the 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders scheduled to be held caround June 10, 2011.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements.

The following documents are filed as part of tlépart: Financial Statements of the Company, inclgdhe report of Independent Certified
Public Accountants, Balance Sheet, Statements efdlipns, Statements of Stockholders' Equity (Difamd Comprehensive Income (Los
Statements of Cash Flow and Notes to FinanciakBtants: as of and for the years ended Decemb@030,and December 31, 2009.

(b) Exhibits.
Exhibit 3.1

Exhibit 3.2

Exhibit 10.1
Exhibit 10.2
Exhibit 10.3
Exhibit 10.4
Exhibit 10.5
Exhibit 10.6

Exhibit 10.7

Exhibit 10.8

Exhibit 10.9

Exhibit 10.10

Exhibit 10.11
Exhibit 10.12
Exhibit 10.13
Exhibit 10.14
Exhibit 10.15

Exhibit 10.16

Exhibit 10.17

Exhibit 10.18

Amended and Restated Certificatenabrporation of the Company, effective NovemberZm3. (1)

Amended and Restated Bylaws of then@any, effective November 20, 2003. (2)

Employment Agreement, dated as atiday 1, 2007, by and between Global Gold Corponadind Hrayr Agnerian. (3)
Labrador Uranium Claims Agreemeratedl January 18, 2007. (4)

Agreement to Acquire Option on Cate Pond Property dated April 12, 2007. (5)

First Amendment of the January ZB)& Share Purchase Agreement (Athelea Investmaaii€d as of May 30, 2007. (6)
Employment Agreement, dated as okJi5, 2007, by and between Global Gold CorporaimhJan Dulman. (7)
Employment Agreement, dated as okJL5, 2007, by and between Global Gold CorporatimhLester Caesar. (8)

Amended Employment Agreement, date of June 15, 2007, by and between Global Gotgd&@ation and Hrayr
Agnerian. (9)

Nominating and Governance Charter dated June I¥,. Z00)

Madre De Dios Mining Property Joifénture Agreement and Options for Chiloe and Imlarid properties dated as of
August 9, 2007. (11)

Commitment to Contribute Mining @ession to a Contractual Mining Company (Unoffigétalglish Translation) dated as
of August 19, 2007. (12)

Contractual Mining Company Agreem@mnofficial English Translation) dated as of Glo¢r 29, 2007. (13)

Amended Terms for Options on Chiéwel Ipun Island Properties dated March 31, 2008 canfirmed April 8, 2008. (14)
Chiloe and Ipun Island PropertieseSAgreement dated as of October 3, 2008. (15)

Royalty Agreement on Cochrane PBruperty, Newfoundland dated as of October 17, 2008

Private Placement Agreement, d&tedember 8, 2008. (17)

Material Contract — Amendment obldl Gold Valdivia Joint Venture Terms, SeparatéProperties and Royalty
Agreement (18)

Employment Agreement, dated as ugust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Cororand Van Krikorian. (19)

Employment Agreement, dated as afust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold MiningCland Ashot Boghossian.
(20)
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Exhibit 10.19

Exhibit 10.20

Exhibit 10.21

Exhibit 10.22

Exhibit 10.23

Exhibit 10.24

Exhibit 10.25

Exhibit 10.26

Exhibit 10.27

Exhibit 10.28

Exhibit 10.29

Exhibit 10.30

Exhibit 10.31

Exhibit 21

Exhibit 31.1

Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 32.1

Employment Agreement, dated as wfust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Corporand Jan Dulman. (21)
Employment Agreement, dated as ugust 11, 2009, by and between Global Gold Corporand Lester Caesar. (22)

Armenian State Natural Resourcesrfay Decision N234 on the Recalculation of Resefwe$oukhmanuk — delivered
Friday, November 13, 2009 — Partial Unofficial Tskation . (23)

Material Contract — Marjan Joint Viere Agreement dated as of December 18, 2009. (24)

Material Contract — Mego Gold, LL®I@ Concentrate Supply Contract with Industrial Blials SA dated as of February
25, 2010. (25)

Material Contract — Mego Gold, LL@cirity Agreement with Industrial Minerals SA dagsiof February 25, 2010. (26)
Material Contract — Global Gold Coration Guarantee to Industrial Minerals SA datedfaFebruary 25, 2010. (27)
Material Contract — Marjan Joint \@re Agreement dated as of March 24, 2010. (28)

Material Contract — (Unofficial Emgit Translation) Mego Gold, LLC non revolving creliie from Armbusinessbank
signed March 26, 2010. (29)

Employment Agreement, dated as afust 19, 2010, by and between Global Gold Corpamaaind Drury Gallagher. (30)
Material Agreement — Debt canceflatand restructuring with conversion rights. (31)

Material Agreement — October 27, 28igned agreement for the sale of Compania MiGdohal Gold Valdivia S.C.M.
company to Conventus Ltd. (32)

Material Contract — Global Gold Coration and Consolidated Resources USA, LLC Joatiture Agreement dated as of
March 17, 2011 (33)

List of Subsidiaries.
Certification of Chief Executive @fér Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 (a) of the SarbandeyQAct of 2002.
Certification of Chief Financial @fér Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 (a) of the SarbandsyQAct of 2002.

Certification of the Chief Executi@ficer and Chief Financial Officer Pursuant tol&.C. Section 1350, as Adopted
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleyoA2002.

(1) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibittd.the Company's annual report onK8B for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed
the SEC on March 31, 2008.

(2) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitt®.zhe Company's annual report onK8B for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed
the SEC on March 31, 2008.

(3) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi71t@. the Company's annual report on 10-KSB forytrer ended December 31, 2006 filed
with the SEC on April 2, 2007.
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(4) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB1i0.the Company's current report on Form 8-K fidth the SEC on January 24, 2007.
(5) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiBli0.the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on April 13, 2007.
(6) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiBlio.the Company's current report on Form 8-K fikdth the SEC on May 31, 2007.

(7) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi5lid.the Company's quarterly report on 10-QSBlierdecond quarter ended June 30, 2007,
filed with the SEC on August 14, 2007.

(8) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibilio.the Company's quarterly report on 10-QSBliersecond quarter ended June 30, 2007,
filed with the SEC on August 14, 2007.

(9) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#lid. the Company's quarterly report on 10-QSBlierdecond quarter ended June 30, 2007,
filed with the SEC on August 14, 2007.

(10) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhititt®.the Company's current report on Form 8-K filéth the SEC on June 20, 2007.

(11) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikéth the SEC on September 7, 2007.
(12) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#ltd the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikéth the SEC on September 7, 2007.
(13) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibidi@ the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfigth the SEC on November 1, 2007.
(14) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibib10 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfigth the SEC on April 9, 2008.

(15) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfilgth the SEC on October 8, 2008.
(16) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB1t0 the Company's current report on Form 8-Kdfikath the SEC on October 22, 2008.
(17) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibittbto the Company’s annual report on Form 10-&dfilvith the SEC on April 15, 2009.
(18) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibib10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on July 29, 2009.

(19) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl0Go the quarterly report on Ifor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iiiddthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(20) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl1Go the quarterly report on Ifor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iiddthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(21) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitl2ao the quarterly report on IDfor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iitdthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(22) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibitLBGo the quarterly report on Ifor the second quarter ended June 30, 2009, iiiddthe
SEC on August 14, 2009.

(23) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on November 19, 2009.
(24) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on December 22, 2009.

(25) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.
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(26) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi#ltd the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.
(27) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibi610 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on March 2, 2010.
(28) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibidi@ the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 25, 2010.
(29) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 30, 2010.

(30) Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibitléto the quarterly report on I@for the second quarter ended June 30, 2010, iiddthe
SEC on August 23, 2010.

(31) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on October 22, 2010.
(32) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdfileith the SEC on November 1, 2010.

(33) Incorporated herein by reference to ExhibiB10 the Company’s current report on Form 8-Kdileith the SEC on March 21, 2011.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regiigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s/ Van Z. Krikorian

Van Z. Krikorian,
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director

April 14, 2011
Date

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of

the registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

/s/ Jan Dulman 4/14/11
Jan Dulman

Chief Financial Officer

/sl Drury J. Gallagher 4/14/11
Drury J. Gallagher
Chairman Emeritus,

Treasurer and Director

/sl lan C. Hague 4/14/11
lan C. Hague

Director
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/sl Van Z. Krikorian

Van Z. Krikorian, Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and Director

4/14/11

/sl Nicholas J. Aynilian 4/14/11
Nicholas J. Ayniliar

Director

/sl Harry Gilmore 4/14/11
Harry Gilmore

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
Global Gold Corporation and Subsidiaries (An Exatmmm Stage Company)

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Global Gold Corporation and Subsisan Exploration Stage Compal
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2010 and 20@bBthe related consolidated statements of operatindssomprehensive income,
stockholders' equity (deficit) and cash flows foe ears then ended. We did not audit the perigéthhang January 1, 1995 through Decen
31, 2010. These financial statements are the regifibty of the Company's management. Our respdlitsilis to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq@nited States). Those stande
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finastaiaiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivel control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtiver financial reporting as a basis for desigrandit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purposes ofesging an opinion on the effectiveness of the Caryipanternal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly we express no such opinidn.audit includes examining, on a test basis, @wie supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit ancludes assessing the accounting principled asd significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fighistatement presentation. We believe that oditeprovide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegaferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 and shég®f their operations and their cash flowstfar years then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America.

The accompanying financial statements have begraprd assuming that the Company will continue gsirag concern. The Company has
incurred significant losses as more fully descrilmeNote 2. These issues raise substantial douhttdabhe Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. Management's plans in regard tethredters are also described in Note 2. The fimhstatements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcomehisf tincertainty.

/s/Sherb & Co., LLP
New York, New York
April 13, 2011
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CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Inventories
Tax refunds receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

LICENSES, net of accumulated amortization of $1,882 and $1,544,339, respectively
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE, net of accumulated amortoatf $498,939 and $332,632,

respectively

DEPOSITS ON CONTRACTS AND EQUIPMENT
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, net of accumulatezpdeciation of $2,442,299 and
$1,982,761, respectively

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Wages payable
Employee loans
Advance from customer
Deposit on sale of property
Secured line of credit - short term portion
Current portion of note payable to Direstor

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

SECURED LINE OF CREDIT - LONG TERM PORTION
NOTE PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS

TOTAL LIABILITIES
STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT:

Common stock $0.001 par, 100,000,000 shares i@zthdo 79,190,475 and 41,152,856 at
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, resphctiiares issued and outstanding

Additional paid-in-capital

Accumulated deficit prior to developmetsige

Deficit accumulated during the developm&age

Accumulated other comprehensive income

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Compan

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

December 31

2010 2009
14,08: $ 29,55
740,09¢ 946,36
106,91 147,91¢
7,70¢ 2,98¢
38,36¢ 10,17¢
907,16: 1,136,99

1,367,28. 1,665,59

1,164,22 1,330,53:

1,002,19! 369,42

1,570,24. 1,753,841

6,011,100 $ 6,256,39:

2,263,99 $ 2,085,17;

1,024,42; 1,174,54
286,17 -
168,72: s
250,00( -
588,00( 486,80
27,62 4,183,23

4,608,941 7,929,75:

2,238,48| 57,11

- 729,16°

6,847,42! 8,716,03
79,19: 41,15:

37,064,89 31,399,57

(2,907,64) (2,907,64)

(37,643,40) (33,800,80)

2,570,65: 2,808,08:
(836,320 (2,459,64)

6,011,100 $ 6,256,39:

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheslited financial statements.






GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Company)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS

Cumulative
amount
from
Year Ended January 1, 1995
December 31, through
December 31,
2010 2009 2010
(Unaudited)

REVENUES $ 358,46° $ 136,64. $ 551,15
COST OF GOODS SOLD 126,18¢ 63,81: 189,99t
GROSS PROFIT 232,28: 72,82¢ 361,15¢
EXPENSES:
General and administrative 1,762,84 2,151,69; 21,433,32
Mining and exploration costs 719,82: 665,45: 14,593,98
Amortization and depreciation 1,035,75. 1,163,65. 5,105,08!
Write-off on investment - 40,88: 176,60}
Gain on sale of investment - - (2,779,779
Loss/(Gain) from investment in joint ventures (100,000 (50,000 (2,523,70)
Interest expense 663,21¢ 559,40’ 1,683,63.
Bad debt expense - - 151,25(
Loss on foreign exchange - 12,45¢ 193,85
Gain on extinguishment of debt - (150,00() (289,76¢)
Interest income (6,75¢) (155) (364,15)

TOTAL EXPENSES 4,074,88, 4,393,309 37,380,34
Loss from Continuing Operations (3,842,60) (4,320,56) (37,019,18)
Discontinued Operations:

Loss from discontinued operations - - 386,41

Loss on disposal of discontinued operations - - 237,80t
Net Loss Applicable to Common Shareholc (3,842,60) (4,320,56) (37,643,40)
Foreign currency translation adjustment (237,43() (499,10 2,217,17!
Unrealized gain/(loss) on investments - - 353,47!
Comprehensive Net Loss $ (4,080,03) $ (4,819,66) $ (35,072,75)

NET LOSS PER SHAR-BASIC AND DILUTED $ (0.08) $ (0.17)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING - BASIC AND
DILUTED 48,447,90 40,029,43

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements.
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
( An Exploration Stage Enterprise )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Balance from February 21, 1980 to

December 31, 199
(Note 1) (Unaudited

Adjustment for the restatement of pa

value

Issuance of stock for acquisition of E)

Recources, N.L
Proceeds received from private
placemen
Net loss

Balance as December 31, 1995
(Unaudited)

Warrants exercised
Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 1996
(Unaudited)

Issuance of common stock
Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 1997
(Unaudited)

Net income

Balance as of December 31, 1998
(Unaudited)

Purchase of treasury stock
Unrealized loss on investment
Net loss

Balance as of December 31, 1999
(Unaudited)

Issuance of common stock in connection

with settlement
Cancellation of treasury stock
Settlement of accrued salary
Sale of warrants
Unrealized loss on investment
Net loss

Balance as December 31, 2000

Deficit
Accumulate:
Prior to and
N During Accumulated

Additional the Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Developmer Treasury Comprehensiv Stockholder:

Shares Amount Capital Stage Stock Income (Loss Equity
898,07: $ 89,807 $3,147,69: $ (2,907,64) $ - $ - $ 329,85
- (88,909 88,90¢ - - - -
1,000,00i 1,00C 849,00( - - - 850,00(
200,00( 20C 421,37. - - - 421,57:
- - - (361,349 - - (361,349
2,098,07. 2,09¢  4,506,97! (3,268,99) - - 1,240,08!
40 - 10C - - - 10C
- - - (668,57°) - - (668,57°)
2,098,11. 2,09¢  4,507,07! (3,937,570 - - 571,60:
2,250,001 2,25( 222,75l - - - 225,00(
- - - (690,74) - - _(690,74)
4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,820  (4,628,31) - - 105,85t
- - - 34,94« - - 34,94«
4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,820  (4,593,37) - - 140,80(
- - - - (60,000 - (60,000
- - - - - (16,000 (16,000
- - - (93,82¢) - - (93,82¢)
4,348,11. 4,34¢ 4,729,820  (4,687,19) (60,000 (16,000 (29,02¢)
20,00( 20 1,98( - - - 2,00C
(1,000,00i) (1,000 (59,000 - 60,00( - -
1,000,001 1,00(¢ 161,50( - - - 162,50(
- - 65C - - - 65C
- - - - - (90,000 (90,000
- - - (33,34) - - (33,34)




(Unaudited)

Net loss
Unrealized loan on investment

Balance as of December 31, 2001
(Unaudited)

Issuance of common stock for
compensation

Net loss

Unrealized gain on investment

Balance as of December 31, 2002
(Unaudited)

4,368,11. 4,36¢ 4,834,95 (4,720,540 (106,001 12,78:
- - - (26,839 - (26,839

] ] ; - (15,000 (15,000
4,368,11. 4366 4,834,95  (4,747,37) (121,000 (29,049
200,00( 20C 9,80( - - 10,00(

- - - (60,119 - (60,119

] ] ; - 247 40 247,40
4,568,11 456¢  4,844,75  (4,807,48) 126,40¢ 168,24«
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Deficit

Accumulate:
Prior to and
During Accumulated
Additional the Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Developmer Treasury Comprehensiv Stockholder:
Shares Amount Capital Stage Stock Income (Loss Equity
Issuance of common stock for ca
at $0.25 per share, Janui 350,00( 35C 87,15( - - - 87,50(
at $0.25 per share, Ju 1,000,00! 1,00(C 231,50( - - - 232,50(
at $0.50 per share, Octot 100,00( 10C 46,40( - - - 46,50(
at $0.50 per share, Octot 400,00( 40C 185,60( - - - 186,00(
Issuance of common stock for compensat
at $0.25 per share, Februi 1,800,00! 1,80( (1,800 - - - -
at $0.25 per share, Ju 900,00( 90C (900 - - - -
at $0.25 per share, Deceml| 90,00( 90 (90 - - - -
Amortization of deferred compensati - - 165,80: - - - 165,80:
Issuance of common stock for servic
at $0.25 per share, Janui 500,00( 50C 24,50( - - - 25,00(
at $0.25 per share, Ap 250,00( 25C 62,25( - - - 62,50(
Shares cancelled in September, which v
issued in Januai (500,000 (500 (24,500 - - - (25,000
Shares issued at $0.25 per share
accounts payable in Api 100,00( 10C 24,90( - - - 25,00(
Fractional share adjustme 20 - - - - - -
Unrealized gain on investme - - - - - (95,279 (95,279
Net loss - - - (616,82() - - (616,82()
Balance as of December 31, 2003
(Unaudited) 9,558,13 9,55¢ 5,645,556  (5,424,30) - 31,12¢ 261,94
Issuance of common stock for
compensatiol 250,00( 25C (250 -
Forfeiture of common stock for
compensatiol (526,83)) (527) 527 -
Sale of common stoc 3,000,001 3,00C 1,482,001 - - - 1,485,001
Issuance of common stock for servi 90,00( aC (90 -
Issuance of common stock for paya 240,00( 24C 113,26( 113,50(
Amortization of unearned compensat 316,75t 316,75t
Net loss (688,03 - (688,039
Unrealized gain on investment - - - - - (31,12¢) (31,12¢)
Balance as of December 31, 2004
(Unaudited) 12,611,30 12,61. 7,557,770 (6,112,34) - - 1,458,03
Issuance of common stock for compensat
at $0.50 per share, Janui 850,00( 85C (850) - - - -
at $1.00 per share, Ju 170,00( 17C (170 - - - -
at $1.50 per share, Deceml| 45,00( 45 (45) - - - -
Sale of common stoc 4,000,00! 4,000  2,996,00 - - - 3,000,001
Less: Selling expense for sale of common s - (39,000 (39,000
Exercise of warrant 220,00( 22C 54,78( 55,00(
Amortization of unearned compensat 292,99: 292,99:
Net loss (2,309,18) (2,309,18)
Foreign currency translation adjustm - - - - - (38,517 (38,517
Balance as of December 31, 2005
(Unaudited) 17,896,30 17,89¢ 10,861,47 (8,421,53) - (38,51) 2,419,33
Issuance of common stock for compensation:
at $1.50 per share, February 274,00( 274 35,72¢ - - - 36,00(
at $1.70 per share, June 925,00( 92t (925) = - - -

at $1.25 per share, September 200,00( 20C (200 - - - -



Forfeiture of common stock for

compensation (40,000 (40 40 =
Issuance of common stock for payable:
at $1.15 per share, January 100,00( 10C 114,90( 115,00(

Sale of common stock 10,400,00 10,40C 12,989,58 - - - 12,999,98

Less: Selling expense for sale of common stock - (764,95) (764,95)
Issuance of options for compensation 225,89: 225,89:
Exercise of warrants 3,000,001 3,00( 2,247,00I 2,250,001
Accrual of stock bonuses issued in 2007 (27,950 (27,950
Amortization of unearned compensation 1,017,74 1,017,74
Net loss (5,296,371 (5,296,371
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 842,73 842,73

Balance as of December 31, 2006 32,755,30 32,75 26,698,33 (13,717,90) - 804,22( 13,817,41
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Deficit

Accumulate:
Prior to and
During Accumulated
Additional the Other Total
Common Stock Paid-in  Developmer Treasury Comprehensiv Stockholder:
Shares Amount Capital Stage Stock Income (Loss Equity
Issuance of common stock for
compensation
at $0.88 per share, Januar 83,33¢ 83 (83) - - - -
at $0.86 per share, January 50,00( 50 (50) - - - -
at $0.83 per share, Ju 286,66t 287 (287) - - - -
Forfeiture of common stock for
compensatiol (172,500 173 (3,786 (3,959
Issuance of common stock for payatl
at $2.00 per share, September (2( 500,00( 50C 999,50( 1,000,001
at $0.86 per share, Janui 63,25( 63 54,33: 54,39t
at $0.85 per share, Ap 150,00( 15C 127,35( 127,50(
Issuance of options for compensat 481,44¢ 481,44¢
Exercise of warrant 150,00( 15C 16,35( 16,50(
Accrual of stock bonuses issued in 2( (14,85() (14,85()
Accrual of interest on not (26,617) (26,617)
Amortization of unearned compensat 986,50( 986,50(
Net loss (9,716,880 (9,716,88i)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 1,307,48 1,307,48I
Balance as of December 31, 2( 33,866,05 33,86¢ 29,318,14 (23,434,78) - 2,111,700  8,028,93
Issuance of common stock for compensat
at $0.17 per share, November 200,00( 20C 33,80( - - - 34,00(
at $0.10 per share, December 20,00( 20 (20 - - - -
Issuance of common stock for payal
at $0.55 per share, February 153,75( 154 84,40¢ 84,56
at $0.17 per share, November 100,00( 10C 16,90( 17,00(
Issuance of options for compensat 279,92! 279,92!
Conversion of note receivable into
shares (152,779 (159 (48,750 (48,907
Issuance of common stock for acquisti
at $0.45 per share, April 250,00( 25C 112,25( 112,50(
Accrual of interest on not (2,55%) (2,555
Sale of common stoc 4,750,00! 4,75( 470,25( - - - 475,00(
Amortization of unearned compensat 717,99: 717,99:
Net loss (8,953,11) (8,953,11)
Other comprehensive income - - - - - 1,195,491  1,195,49
Balance as of December 31, 2( 39,187,02 39,18° 30,982,35 (32,387,89) - 3,307,191  1,940,83
Issuance of common stock for compensat
at $0.20 per share, May . 333,33: 333 (339) - - - -
at $0.10 per share, July 1,387,501 1,38¢ (1,38¢) - - - -
at $0.14 per share, Augus 245,00( 24t (24%) - - - -
Issuance of options for compensat 130,27: 130,27:
Amortization of unearned compensat 288,91¢ 288,91¢
Net loss (4,320,56) (4,320,56)
Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - - (499,10) (499,10)
Balance as of December 31, 2( 41,152,85 41,15¢ 31,399,57 (36,708,45) - 2,808,08. (2,459,64)
Issuance of common stock for compensat
at $0.10 per share, August 120,00( 12C 9,88( - - - 10,00¢(
Conversion of note payable into sha 35,417,61 35,41¢ 5,277,22! 5,312,64.
Exercise of warrant 2,500,001 2,50( 247,50( 250,00(
Issuance of options for compensat 69,45 69,45

Amortization of unearned compensat 61,26( 61,26(



Net loss (3,842,60) (3,842,60)

Other comprehensive income (loss) - - - - (237,43() (237,43()
Balance as of December 31, 2010 79,190,47 $ 79,19 $37,064,89 $(40,551,05) - $2,570,65. $ (836,32()

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements.
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Enterprise)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cumulative
amount
Year Endec from
December 31 January 1, 1995
through
December 31,
2010 2009 2010
(Unaudited)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net loss $ (3,842,60) $ (4,320,56) $ (37,643,40)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash irsegerating activities:
Amortization of unearned compensat 61,26( 288,91¢ 3,847,96'
Stock option expens 69,45: 130,27: 1,186,99
Amortization expens 464,62: 464,63: 2,567,271
Depreciation expens 571,12¢ 699,02: 2,763,71
Stock based compensati 10,00( - 66,61
Write-off of investmen - 40,88: 176,60!
Loss on disposal of discontinued operati - - 237,80t
Gain from investment in joint ventur (100,000 (150,000 (2,473,70)
Gain on extinguishment of de - - (289,76¢)
Gain on sale of investmer - - (2,779,77)
Bad debt expens - - 151,25(
Other noi-cash expense - - 155,56°
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Other current and non current as: (418,404 207,10( (2,225,59)
Accounts payable and accrued expel 427,47¢ 362,78: 3,020,26!
Accrued interes 387,63 499,30( 1,073,94
Wages payable (150,12 1,043,30 1,024,42.
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (2,519,55I) (734,349 (29,139,81)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property, plant and equiprr (402,639 (115,349 (4,538,55)
Proceeds from sale of mining inter 250,00( - 3,141,15!
Proceeds from sale of Tamaya Common S - - 4,957,73
P roceeds from sale of investment in common stoc&teflite Gold - - 246,76°
Investment in joint venture - - (260,000
Investment in mining licenses - - (5,756,10)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (152,639 (115,349 (2,208,99))
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from private placement offer - - 18,155,10.
Repurchase of common sta - - (25,000
Advance from custome 168,72. - 168,72.
Proceeds from secured line of cre 2,534,08: - 3,189,37
Repayment of secured line of cre (468,91) (172,429) (641,33)
Note payable to Directol 138,40« 857,51( 4,403,32!
Warrants exercised 250,00( - 2,572,25
N ET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2,622,299 685,08 27,822,44
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE ON CASH 34,42 (34,206 3,529,10
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASI 191,59¢ (198,82() 209,79!
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - beginning of period 29,55! 228,37: 11,35:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - end of period $ 14,08: $ 29,55. $ 14,08

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION




Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Noncash Transaction

Stock issued for deferred compensation
Stock forfeited for deferred compensation
Stock issued for mine acquisition

Stock issued for notes payable

Shares cancelled for receivable settlement
Mine acquisition costs in accounts payables

2,68

267,61(

343,13¢

2,00(

3,871,21

742,50(

1,227,501

5,312,64.

5,337,64.

77,91

A2 |||

$
$
$
$
$
$

50,69:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheslited financial statements.
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GLOBAL GOLD CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
(An Exploration Stage Company)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
1. ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS

Global Gold is currently in the exploration statiés engaged in exploration for, and developmert mining of, gold, silver, and other
minerals in Armenia, Canada and Chile. Until MaBdh 2011, the Company's headquarters were locatédgenwich, Connecticut and as of
April 1, 2011 the Company’s headquarters are in, R\ Its subsidiaries maintain offices and staffrerevan, Armenia, and Santiago,
Chile. The Company was incorporated as Triad En@gyyoration in the State of Delaware on Februdryl®80 and, as further described
below, conducted other business prior to Januat@d5. During 1995, the Company changed its naora ffriad Energy Corporation to
Global Gold Corporation to pursue certain gold aogper mining rights in the former Soviet Repubbf#\rmenia and Georgia. The
Company has not established proven and probaldevess in accordance with SEC Industry Guide @&ngtof its properties. The Company's
stock is publicly traded. The Company employs apipnately 100 people globally on a year round basid an additional 200 people on a
seasonal basis.

In Armenia, the Company’s focus is primarily on theploration, development and production of golthatTukhmanuk property in the North
Central Armenian Belt. The Company is also focusethe exploration and development of the Marjash @n expanded Marjan North
property. In addition, the Company is exploringl @eveloping other sites in Armenia, including @@mpany’s Getik property. The
Company also holds royalty and participation rightsther locations in the country through affiéatand subsidiaries.

In Chile, the Companyg focus is primarily on the exploration, developtremd production of gold at the Pureo propertyadatk central Chile
near Valdivia. The Company is also engaged intifiémg exploration and production opportunitiesoditer locations in Chile.

In Canada, the Company has engaged in uraniumratiolio activities in the provinces of Newfoundlaart Labrador, but has phased out
activity, retaining a royalty interest in the Coahe Pond property in Newfoundland.

The Company also assesses exploration and produagijoortunities in other countries.
The subsidiaries of the Company are as follows:

On January 24, 2003, the Company formed Globall@f and Global Plata LLC, as wholly owned subsiidisy in the State of Delaware.
These companies were formed to be equal joint asvolea Chilean limited liability company, Mineradbial Chile Limitada ("Minera
Global"), formed as of May 6, 2003, for the purpo$eonducting operations in Chile.

On August 18, 2003, the Company formed Global QGaldenia LLC ("GGA"), as a wholly owned subsidiawhich in turn formed Global
Gold Mining LLC ("Global Gold Mining"), as a whollgwned subsidiary, both in the State of Delawateb@& Gold Mining was qualified to
do business as a branch operation in Armenia am$ @ssets, royalty and participation interestsyedsas shares of operating companies in
Armenia.

On December 21, 2003, Global Gold Mining acquir8@% of the Armenian limited liability company SHR.,.C (renamed Global Gold
Hankavan, LLC ("GGH") as of July 21, 2006), whiakidhthe license to the Hankavan and Marjan propeiti Armenia. On December 18,
2009, the Company entered into an agreement wilthe@aoutlining the terms of a joint venture on @@mpany’s Marjan property in
Armenia (“Marjan JV”). On March 12, 2010, GGH tsferred the rights, title and interest for the Marproperty to Marjan Mining
Company, a limited liability company incorporatetter the laws of the Republic of Armenia (“MarjaA’R An involuntary bankruptcy
petition was filed against GGH which was granted sncurrently on appeal. On June 18, 2010, tha@2my closed Marjan JV leaving the
Company with a 45% interest. On October 7, 201® Gompany terminated the Marjan JV for Calderais-payment and non-
performance. See Legal Matters and Subsequent&f@ran update on the Marjan JV.

F-8




On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining acquired 5@f4he Armenian limited liability company Mego-GoldLC, which is the licensee for
the Tukhmanuk mining property and seven surroundimoration sites. On August 2, 2006, Global Qdiding acquired the remaining
49% interest of Mego-Gold, LLC, leaving Global Gdfiining as the owner of 100% of Mego-Gold, LLC. eStubsequent Events for an
update on Mego-Gold, LLC.

On January 31, 2006, Global Gold Mining closed andaction to acquire 80% of the Armenian companhelea Investments, CJ
(renamed "Getik Mining Company, LLC") andstapproximately 27 square kilometer Getik gold/imanexploration license area in
northeast Geghargunik province of Armenia. As @&yMO0, 2007, Global Gold Mining acquired the renrai20% interest in Getik Minir
Company, LLC, leaving Global Gold Mining as the @wiof 100% of Getik Mining Company, LLC. See Suhsmt Events for an update
Getik Mining Company, LLC.

On January 5, 2007, the Company formed Global Go#hium, LLC ("Global Gold Uranium™), as a whollyvaed subsidiary, in the State of
Delaware, to operate the Company's uranium exjporaitivities in Canada.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compiémngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agreémvégh members of the Quijano family (“Quijano”) lhich Minera Global assumed a
51% interest in the placer and hard rock gold Malir®ios and Pureo properties in south centraleChiar Valdivia. The name of the joint
venture company is Compania Minera Global Gold WéddS.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV”). OrAugust 14, 2009, the Company
amended the above agreement whereby Global Goltiwieabecame wholly owned by the Company and rethionly the Pureo Claims
Block (approximately 8,200 hectares), transfertimg Madre De Dios claims block to the sole owngrsbimembers of the Quijano

family. On October 27, 2010, the Company entenéal &an agreement with Conventus Ltd. a BVI corporef‘Conventus”) for the sale of
100% interest in GGV. See Subsequent Event fapaate on GGV.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemgmsent the available exploration stage activitiésrmation of the Company from
January 1, 1995, the period commencing the Compapgrations as Global Gold Corporation and Sufsedi, through December 31, 2010.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a. Basis for Presentation - The consolidated firsustatements at December 31, 2010 and 2009,arttld years then ended were prepared
assuming that the Company would continue as a gaingern. Since its inception, the Company, anaafibn stage enterprise, has
generated revenues of $551,152 (other than interestne, the proceeds from the sale of an inténemt Armenian mining venture with
Iberian Resources Ltd., and the sale of commorksibmarketable securities received as considaratierewith) while incurring losses in
excess of $37,600,000. Management pursued additiorestors and lending institutions interestedimancing the Company's projects.
However, there is no assurance that the Compahyhitin the financing that it requires or will a@be profitable operations. The Company
expected to incur additional losses for the nean tentil such time as it would derive substant@lanues from the Armenian mining interests
acquired by it or other future projects. These arattaised substantial doubt about the Companifig/db continue as a going concern. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements wepared on a going concern basis, which contaatpthe realization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal coursebefsiness. The accompanying consolidated finastad¢ments at December 31, 2010 and .
and for the years then ended did not include ajysadents that might be necessary should the Coyripamnable to continue as a going
concern.

Certain reclassifications have been made to pear ymounts to conform to the current year pretenta

b. Use of Estimates - The preparation of finansatements in conformity with accounting principieserally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimat@sssumptions that affect the reported amountsssta and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amountsvefnges and expenses during the reporting perioaiahcesults could differ from those

estimates.

c¢. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash éntivaonsist of all cash balances and highly donvestments with a remaining maturity
of three months or less when purchased and aredat fair value.
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d. Fair Value of Financial Instruments - The Compadopted FASB ASC 82Bair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for ass®
liabilities measured at fair value on a recurrirgib. ASC 820 establishes a common definitiondanfalue to be applied to existing gener
accepted accounting principles that require theafigair value measurements establishes a frame¥asrineasuring fair value and expa
disclosure about such fair value measurements.atoption of ASC 820 did not have an impact on tleen@anys financial position ¢
operating results, but did expand certain disclesur

ASC 820 defines fair value as the price that wdnddeceived to sell an asset or paid to transfiebdity in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Axtditly, ASC 820 requires the use of valuation tégines that maximize the use of
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobsdevaputs. These inputs are prioritized below:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted marnketin active markets for identical assets dailites

Level 2: Observable market-based inputs obsaovable inputs that are corroborated by markiet da

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which thesditile or no market data, which require the ukthe reporting entity’s own
assumptions.

The Company did not have any Level 2 or Level 2&sar liabilities as of December 31, 2010 and Dexer 31, 2009.

The Company discloses the estimated fair valuealfdinancial instruments for which it is practida to estimate fair value. As of December
31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, the fair valuetghon financial instruments including cash, reedies, and accounts payable and accruec
expenses, approximates book value due to theit-&on duration.

Cash and cash equivalents include money marketiseswand commercial paper that are considerdzbthighly liquid and easily tradable.
These securities are valued using inputs observalaletive markets for identical securities andtherefore classified as Level 1 within the
fair value hierarchy.

In addition, the Financial Accounting Standards BIgd@FASB”) issued, “The Fair Value Option for Fimeial Assets and Financial
Liabilities,” effective for January 1, 2008. Thigigance expands opportunities to use fair valuesomements in financial reporting and
permits entities to choose to measure many finhimgguments and certain other items at fair valtlee Company did not elect the fair value
option for any of its qualifying financial instrumies.

e. Inventories - Inventories consists of the follogvat December 31, 2010 and 2009:

2010 2009
Ore $ 560,56( $ 772,29¢
Concentrate 3,99/ 32,85¢
Materials, supplies and other 175,54. 141,21¢
Total Inventories $ 740,09¢ $ 946,36¢

Ore inventories consists of unprocessed ore afthkbmanuk mining site in Armenia. The concentrate anprocessed ore are stated at the
lower of cost or market.

f. Deposits on Contracts and Equipment - The Combais made several deposits for purchases, theitgajbwhich is for the potential
acquisition of new properties, and the remaindettie purchase of mining equipment.

g. Tax Refunds Receivable - The Company is sulbje¢alue Added Tax ("VAT tax") on all expendituresArmenia at the rate of 20%. The
Company is entitled to a credit against this taxaials any sales on which it collects VAT tax. Then@®any is carrying a tax refund
receivable based on the value of its in-processritory which it intends on selling in the next tweemonths, at which time they will collect
20% VAT tax from the purchaser which the Companly ma entitled to keep and apply against its credit
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h. Net Loss Per ShareBasic net loss per share is based on the weiginedage number of common and common equivalenies
outstanding. Potential common shares includablthéncomputation of fully diluted per share resalts not presented in the consolidi
financial statements as their effect would be diititive. The total number of warrants and optitimest are exercisable at December 31, .
and 2009 was 5,094,167 and 6,997,917, respectively.

i. Stock Based Compensation - The Company perifgissues shares of common stock for servicesemwor for financing costs. Such
shares are valued based on the market price dretigaction date. The Company periodically isstiesk options and warrants to employees
and non-employees in non-capital raising transastfor services and for financing costs.

The Company accounts for the grant of stock andamés awards in accordance with ASC Topic 718, Gomapgtion — Stock Compensation
(ASC 718). ASC 718 requires companies to recognitiee statement of operations the grant-datevidire of warrants and stock options
and other equity based compensation.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was dgwetifor use in estimating the fair value of tradptions that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, optionuatlon models require the input of highly subjegtassumptions including the expected stock
price volatility.

For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 200®sseand loss per share include the actual dedufdir stock-based compensation
expense. The total stock-based compensation expente year ended December 31, 2010 and 200%®23,712 and $419,192,
respectively. The expense for stock-based compensata non-cash expense item.

j. Comprehensive Incon- The Company has adopted ASC Topic 220, “Comprakierincome.” Comprehensive income is comprised of
income (loss) and all changes to stockholdersteddeéficit), except those related to investmentstockholders, changes in paid-in capital
and distribution to owners.

The following table summarizes the computation®meding net loss to comprehensive loss for thaeyeaded December 31, 2010 and 2!

Year Ending December 31,

2010 2009
Net loss $ (3,842,60) $ (4,320,56)
Unrealized gain arising during year $ (237,430 $ (499,109
Comprehensive loss $ (4,080,03) $ (4,819,66)

k. Income Taxes - Income taxes are accounteith faccordance with the provisions of FASB ASC 746counting for Income Taxes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaethe future tax consequences attributable tiefices between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitind their respective tax bases. Deferred tax sasek liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeerytars in which those temporary differences apeeted to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities change in tax rates is recognized in income irpréd that includes the enactment date.
Valuation allowances are established, when necgssareduce deferred tax assets to the amountceeghto be realized.

[. Acquisition, Exploration and Development Cosiineral property acquisition costs are capitalizédditionally, mine development costs
incurred either to develop new ore deposits andtrocting new facilities are capitalized until optgons commence. All such capitalized
costs are amortized using a straight-line basia mange from 10 years, based on the minimum original license t&racquisition, but do n
exceed the useful life of the capitalized costpotycommercial development of an ore body, theiegiple capitalized costs would then be
amortized using the units-of-production methodplBration costs, costs incurred to maintain curggntiuction or to maintain assets on a
standby basis are charged to operations. Costisasfdoned projects are charged to operations Umordanment. The Company evaluates,
at least quarterly, the carrying value of capitdiznining costs and related property, plant andpegent costs, if any, to determine if these
costs are in excess of their net realizable vahgkifea permanent impairment needs to be recordé periodic evaluation of carrying value
of capitalized costs and any related property,t@aid equipment costs are based upon expectedioashand/or estimated salvage value in
accordance with ASC Topic 360, "Accounting for thgpairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets."
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m. Foreign Currency Translation - The assets adilliies of non-U.S. subsidiaries are translated 1J.S. Dollars at yeagnd exchange rate
Income and expense items are translated at averap@nge rates during the year. Cumulative translaidjustments are shown as a separate
component of stockholders' equity.

n. Principles of ConsolidationOur consolidated financial statements have beepagped in accordance with accounting principlesgaly
accepted in the United States of America, and telthe accounts of the Company and more-than-8@%ed subsidiaries that
controls. Inter-company balances and transactiams been eliminated in consolidation.

0. Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization - Galized costs are depreciated or depleted usingtthghtline method over the shorter
estimated productive lives of such facilities oe tiiseful life of the individual assets. Productives range from 1 to 20 years, but do
exceed the useful life of the individual asset.dbatination of expected useful lives for amortizatealculations are made on a property-by-
property or asset-by-asset basis at least annually.

p. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Managemenieeg and evaluates the net carrying value of allifees, including idle facilities, for
impairment at least annually, or upon the occureasfaother events or changes in circumstancesrttimiate that the related carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. We estimate the net réddizalue of each property based on the estimatdicounted future cash flows that will
be generated from operations at each propertyedtimated salvage value of the surface plant anghegnt and the value associated with
property interests. All assets at an operating ssgrare evaluated together for purposes of estigdtiture cash flows.

g. Licenses - Licenses are capitalized at cosa@@mortized on a straight-line basis on a rarga . to 10 years, but do not exceed the
useful life of the individual license. At Decemisdr, 2010 and 2009, amortization expense totaléd $23 and $464,631, respectively.
Amortization expense over the next five years il

Year Amount
2011 $ 464,63
2012 $ 464,63
2013 $ 464,63
2014 $ 464,63
2015 $ 340,33
thereafter $ 332,33¢

r. Reclamation and Remediation Costs (Asset Retinrti@®bligations) - Costs of future expendituresdiovironmental remediation are not
discounted to their present value unless subjegtcdmntractually obligated fixed payment sched8lech costs are based on management's
current estimate of amounts to be incurred whemeaheediation work is performed, within current laaved regulations. The Company has
accrued approximately $30,000 as December 31, @@idh it needs to pay towards it environmental seghich remain unpaid as of the date
of this filing. The Company mined approximately,®10 tonnes in 2010 but did not mine ore in 2009.

It is possible that, due to uncertainties assodiaii¢gh defining the nature and extent of environtaknontamination and the application of
laws and regulations by regulatory authorities emanges in reclamation or remediation technoldgy uitimate cost of reclamation and
remediation could change in the future.

s. Revenue Recognition - Sales are recognizedem@thues are recorded when title transfers andghtsrand obligations of ownership pass
to the customer. The majority of the company's hegtacentrates are sold under pricing arrangemenése final prices are determined by
guoted market prices in a period subsequent tddkte of sale. In these circumstances, revenuageneded at the times of sale based on
forward prices for the expected date of the firdflsment. In 2010 and 2009, the Company recodr358,467 and $136,641, respectively,
of sales from its Tukhmanuk property in ArmenigheTCompany also possesses Net Smelter Return (“N8fRilty from non-affiliated
companies. As the non-affiliated companies reasgrevenue, as per above, the Company is entiléd NSR royalty percentage and
royalty income is recognized and recorded. In 2&i® 2009, the Company did not recognize any incioame royalties.
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t. New Accounting Standards:

In January 2010, the FASB issued ASU 2010-06, ¥alue Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 820) dwipg Disclosures about Fair
Value Measurements, which enhances the usefulfiéas value measurements. The amended guidaneéresgooth the disaggregation of
information in certain existing disclosures, ashaslthe inclusion of more robust disclosures alaiuation techniques and inputs to
recurring and nonrecurring fair value measuremériie.amended guidance is effective for interim andual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2009, except for the disaggi@yaéquirement for the reconciliation disclosufé_evel 3 measurements, which is
effective for fiscal years beginning after Decembgy 2010 and for interim periods within those gedihe Company does not anticipate that
this pronouncement will have a material impactterrésults of operations or financial position.

On March 5, 2010, the FASB issued authoritativedgnce to clarify the type of embedded credit dérreathat is exempt from embedc
derivative bifurcation requirements. Specificaliyly one form of embedded credit derivative quatifior the exemption ene that is relate
only to the subordination of one financial instruthéo another. As a result, entities that have remt$ containing an embedded cr
derivative feature in a form other than such suibatibn may need to separately account for the el credit derivative feature. T
guidance also has transition provisions, which peentities to make a special otime election to apply the fair value option to
investment in a beneficial interest in securitif@dncial assets, regardless of whether such imests contain embedded derivative feat
This guidance is effective on the first day of fhst fiscal quarter beginning after June 15, 2088rly adoption is permitted at the beginr
of any fiscal quarter beginning after March 5, 20T8is amendment is not expected to have a matenéct on the Company’financia
statements

In April 2010, the FASB issued Update No. 2010-dr7ASU 2010-17, Revenue RecognitioMilestone Method, which updates the guida
currently included under topic 605, Revenue RedagniASU 2010-17 provides guidance on definingriilestone and determining when
the use of the milestone method of revenue recogribr research or development transactions isapijate. It provides criteria for
evaluating if the milestone is substantive andifidsrthat a vendor can recognize consideratiohigheontingent upon achievement of a
milestone as revenue in the period in which thestdne is achieved, if the milestone meets alttheria to be considered substantive. ASU
201047 is effective for milestones achieved in fiscahgs, and interim periods within those years, beg@after June 15, 2010 and shoul
applied prospectively. Early adoption is permitt€de Company is currently evaluating the potengdact, if any, of the new accounting
guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

In April 2010, the FASB issued an authoritativeryoncement on effect of denominating the exerdige pf a share-based payment award
in the currency of the market in which the undextyequity securities trades and that currencyfisréint from (1) entity’s functional
currency, (2) functional currency of the foreigreagtion for which the employee provides services, @) payroll currency of the employee.
The pronouncement clarifies that an employee shased payment award with an exercise price dendedrna the currency of a market in
which a substantial portion of the entity’s equggcurities trades should not be considered to toataondition that is not a market,
performance, or service condition, and therefomukhbe considered an equity award assuming adlrattiteria for equity classification are
met. The pronouncement is for interim and annuebgs beginning on or after December 15, 2010,witicoe applied prospectively.
Affected companies will be required to record a alative catch-up adjustment for all awards outstagnas of the beginning of the annual
period in which the guidance is adopted. This ameat is not expected to have a material impacherCompany’s financial statements.

Management does not believe that any other recesstihyed, but not yet effective, accounting stanslamiild have a material effect on the
accompanying consolidated financial statementsiévg accounting pronouncements are issued, the Gompid adopt those that are
applicable under the circumstances.

A variety of proposed or otherwise potential acdamgnstandards are currently under study by stahsetting organizations and various

regulatory agencies. Due to the tentative andmieéry nature of those proposed standards, manaddras not determined whether
implementation of such proposed standards wouldi&ierial to our consolidated financial statements.
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3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table illustrates the capitalized tless accumulated depreciation arriving at thecaatying value on our books at December
31, 2010 and 2009.

2010 2009
Property, plant and equipment $ 4,012,540 $ 3,736,60:
Less accumulated depreciation (2,442,29) (1,982,76)

$ 1,570,24 $ 1,753,84

The Company had depreciation expense for the yadeDecember 31, 2010 and 2009 of $571,128 an@, 88, respectively.

4. OTHER RECEIVABLE

As of December 31, 2010 the Company was owed $6003r0m Caldera Resources per the terms of thedvialy agreement. The Comp:
has decided to not carry this receivable as art,amgmn though the Company is in arbitration toeh@aldera perform its obligations, because
Caldera has not performed on any of its obligattonSlobal per the Marjan JV agreement.

5. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the accountshypapgad accrued expenses consisted of the follawing

2010 2009
Drilling work payable $ 313,32: $ 317,54
Accounts payable 1,858,99. 1,713,45!
Accrued expenses 91,68: 54,16¢

$ 2,263,991 $ 2,085,17.

6. DEPOSIT PAYABLE

On August 28, 2008, the Company received an advain®&50,000 from one of the Madre Gold, LLC mensban the anticipated signing of
the July 31, 2008 Agreement, as further describhatlé Agreements section below. As of SeptembgRQ08, the agreement was terminated
due to non performance of one of the closing okiiga by one of the parties. As partial compeosetdr the non-performing party’s breach
of contract, the Company has retained this depasiif the date of this filing. The Company hadtemi off the deposit to gain on
extinguishment of debt as of December 31, 2009.

7. DEPOSIT ON SALE OF PROPERTY

On October 29, 2010, the Company received an aévain$250,000 from Conventus Ltd. a BVI corporatf@onventus”) for the sale of
100% interest in the Compania Minera Global Golddiéa S.C.M. company (“GGV”) which holds the Puretning assets in Chile, as
further described in the Agreements section beldfithe sale does not close, the Company is resplnfor repayment of payments made
prior to closing based on terms contingent uporré¢lason for the closing to not occur. As of Decen#i, 2010, the Company is carrying the
$250,000 deposit as a liability since the closiag hot occurred. See Subsequent Events for aneipddhe sale to Conventus.

8. SECURED LINE OF CREDIT

The Company has secured a secured line of crexdit Arexim bank in Armenia. The Company pledgedatemining equipment with an
approximate value of $817,550 at its Tukhmanuk ertypagainst the line of credit. The maximum credis for $656,631. As of December
31, 2010, the Company had borrowings outstandirgy6f000 all of which is payable in 2011 and bérterest at 16%. There was no
accrued interest owed as of December 31, 2010.

On March 26, 2010, the Company, through its whollined subsidiary Mego Gold, LLC (“Mego”) enteretbima credit line agreement for 1
billion Armenian Drams (approximately $2,500,000)hwArmbusinessbank Close Joint Stock Company (“ABB Yerevan, Armenia. The



credit line includes a grace period on repaymemrioicipal until April 20, 2011, is not revolvingjay be prepaid at any time, and is to be
drawn down towards equipment purchases, constryaiod expansion of the existing plant and opematto increase production capacity to
300,000 tonnes of ore per year at Mego’s Tukhmammagerty in Armenia. The loan is for a period oféars through March 20, 2015, bears
interest at 14% for amounts borrowed, and beaesdgst at 2% for amount available but not borrow&de loan is made and payable in local
AMD currency. As security, 100% of the Mego shaaed the mining right certified by the Mining LicenAgreement #287 with Purpose of
Sub-Surface Exploitation and Mining License #HA-£356 issued on August 5, 2005. The balance owBeéeember 31, 2010 was
$2,751,485. There was no accrued interest oweflBsaember 31, 2010.. The balance has increasgddoel to foreign currency rates as of
December 31, 2010. The balance includes princip&513,000 due in 2011, $684,000 due in 2018480 due in 2013, $684,000 due in
2014, and $186,485 due in 2015.
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9. SEGMENT REPORTING BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

The Company has sold its products to various custemrimarily in former Soviet Union, but as of Mar24, 2009 the Company entered into
an agreement to sell the output of gold and sibegicentrates from the Tukhmanuk mine to a Swisedbasmpany. The Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations on its customers aneigaly does not require collateral. The Compangrafes in a single industry segment,
production of gold and other precious metals iniclgdoyalties from other non-affiliated companiesguction of gold and other precious
metals.

For the fiscal years end December 31, 2010 and,2008f the Company'’s revenue was $358,467 and $¥3, respectively, which was all
derived from Armenia.

The following summarizes identifiable assets bygyaphic area:

Year Ending December 31,

2010 2009
Armenia $ 4,833,04, $ 4,873,89:
Chile 1,165,08! 1,351,833
United States 12,97¢ 30,66¢

$ 6,011,100 $ 6,256,39:

The following summarizes operating losses befoowipion for income tax:

Year Ending December 31,

2010 2009
Armenia $ 191233 $ 2,299,78
Chile 207,74¢ 291,07:
Canada - 40,88:
United States 1,722,51! 1,688,82!

$ 3,842,60. $ 4,320,56.

10. CONCENTRATION RISK

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consisiqypally of cash. The Company places
its cash with high credit quality financial institans in the United States and Armenia. Bank digpdsthe United States did not exceed
federally insured limits as of December 31, 2010 Becember 31, 2009. As of December 31, 2010 awDber 31, 2009, the Company
had approximately $9,867 and $250, respectivelArmenian bank deposits and $859 and $21,000, casply, in Chilean bank deposits,
which may not be insured. The Company has not é&pezd any losses in such accounts through Deceddh@010 and as of the date of 1
filing.

The majority of the Company's present activitiesiarArmenia and Chile. As with all types of intational business operations, currency

fluctuations, exchange controls, restrictions arifgn investment, changes to tax regimes, polificiibn and political instability could impair
the value of the Company's investments.
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11. OFFICERS' COMPENSATION AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The Company values shares issued to officers ubménir value of common shares on grant date.

On December 31, 2008, pursuant to his employmgmeteanent, Mr. Gallaghes’agreement was automatically extended for aniaddityea
through December 31, 2009 under the same terms ahaual salary of $125,000, 33,333 shares oficesircommon stock and stock opti
to purchase 166,667 of common stock of the Comp&hy.May 18, 2009, pursuant to Mr. Gallagke€mployment agreement exten:
under his contract and as confirmed by the indepeindompensation committee and board of directdrs,Gallagher was granted 33,:
shares of restricted common stock with 16,667 shassting on June 30, 2009, and 16,666 sharesngesti December 31, 2009. |
Gallagher was also granted stock options to puecH#6,667 shares of common stock of the Compar0&0 per share vesting
November 18, 2009. The restricted stock is sulifeet substantial risk of forfeiture upon termioatiof his employment with the Comp:
during the term of the Employment Agreement.

On May 18, 2009, the Company issued as directestfe each of the five directors (Nicholas Ayniliamury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore,
lan Hague, and Van Z. Krikorian) stock options tmghase 100,000 shares of common stock of the Coyrgeech at $0.20 per share, vesting
on November 18, 2009. The option grants were madgupnt to the Global Gold Corporation 2006 Staaehtive Plan and pursuant to the
Board’s April 24, 2009 decision from which date thgtions were valued.

On May 18, 2009, pursuant to Courtney Fellowes’ leynpent agreement as the Company’s Vice PresideBtisiness Development and
Investor Relations for the period of January 1,2@0December 31, 2009, Mrs. Fellowes was gran®8d0D0 shares of restricted common
stock to vest in equal installments of 50,000 shaach on June 30, 2009, and December 31, 2008. Rdilowes was also granted stock
options to purchase 100,000 shares of common sifitle Company at $0.20 per share vesting on JAn2aD9. The restricted stock is
subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture upomtimation of his employment with the Company durihg term of the Employment
Agreement.

On May 18, 2009, the Company issued Jan Dulmar0R0Ghares of restricted common stock as a retepigment under the terms of his
employment agreement vesting on December 31, 2088.restricted stock is subject to a substansélaf forfeiture upon termination of his
employment with the Company.

On June 19, 2009, the Company’s independent corafiensommittee and the board of directors autlorigmployment amendments and
extensions to Messrs. Krikorian, Boghossian, Dulnaai Caesar under the same terms of their prieeagents.

On August 12, 2009, the Company finalized employnagmeement amendments and extensions under theeteamms of their current
contracts which were approved on June 19, 200&dY¥bmpany’s independent compensation committéeedboard of director’s to retain
key employees, for Messrs. Krikorian, Boghossiamipian and Caesar. Annual compensation terms war@creased. Mr. Krikorian's
employment agreement was extended for an additgabr term from July 1, 2009 through June 30220ith an annual salary of $225,000
and Mr. Krikorian was granted 1,050,000 share®sfricted common stock which will vest in equal sammual installments over the term of
his employment agreement. Mr. Boghossian's empétragreement was extended for an additional 3tgear from July 1, 2009 through
June 30, 2012 with an annual salary of $72,000MindBoghossian was granted 337,500 shares of eesfrcommon stock which will vest in
equal semi-annual installments over the term oEhiployment agreement.

Mr. Dulman’s employment agreement was extendearioadditional 3 year term from August 1, 2009 tigtoduly 31, 2012 with an annual
salary of $150,000 and Mr. Dulman was granted Zabghares of restricted common stock which wiltwe®qual semi-annual installments
over the term of his employment agreement. Mrnar was also granted stock options to purchas®@@Shares of common stock of the
Company at $0.14 per share (based on the closiog @t his renewal) vesting in equal quarterlyatistents over the term of his employment
agreement. Mr. Caesar’s employment agreement xtasded for an additional year from August 1, 2€@®ugh July 31, 2010 with an
annual salary of $30,000 and Mr. Caesar was gr&0e¢iD0 shares of restricted common stock whichwest in equal semi-annual
installments over the term of his employment agme®m The option grant was made pursuant to thé&IiGold Corporation 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan. The restricted stock is subjea substantial risk of forfeiture upon terminatafremployment with the Company during the
term of the Employment Agreements.

On August 18, 2010, the Company and Mr. CaesaiCtmepany’s Controller, decided to not extend histiart which ended on July 31,
2010.
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On August 19, 2010, Mr. Gallagher received 20,0tres of restricted common stock and stock optiomsirchase 100,000 of common
stock of the Company. Mr. Gallagher’s contract weeviously automatically renewed and extendedufjinadDecember 31, 2010. On June
18, 2010, pursuant to Mr. Gallagher’'s employmemeament extension under his contract and as coadittoy the independent compensation
committee and board of directors, Mr. Gallagher gtanted 20,000 shares of restricted common stattk0,000 shares vesting
immediately, and 10,000 shares vesting on DeceBthe2010. Mr. Gallagher was also granted stoclooptto purchase 100,000 shares of
common stock of the Company at $0.10 per sharedbas the fair market value on June 18, 2010 whey Were authorized, vesting on
November 19, 2010. The restricted stock is sultgeatsubstantial risk of forfeiture upon termipatiof his employment with the Compa
during the term of the Employment Agreement.

On August 19, 2010, the Company issued as diretdessto each of the five directors (Nicholas Aiam| Drury J. Gallagher, Harry Gilmore,
lan Hague, and Van Z. Krikorian) stock options twghase 100,000 shares of common stock of the Coymgeech at $0.10 per share, vesting
on November 18, 2009. The option grants were madsupnt to the Global Gold Corporation 2006 Staalehtive Plan and pursuant to the
Board’s June 18, 2010 decision from which dateogittons were valued.

On August 19, 2010, the Company declared a stonkdto Dr. Urquhart of 100,000 shares of commookséd $0.10 per share for a total
value of $10,000 pursuant to the Board’s June2Q&0 decision from which date the shares wereedalu

Compensation expense for the years ended Decerhp20B0 and 2009 was $929,751 and $1,010,915. Mberat of total deferred
compensation amortized for the years ended Dece&ihe2010 and 2009 was $61,260 and $288,919.

The following table illustrates the Company's comgaion commitments for the next 5 years as of Bées 31, 2010.

Year Amount

2011 525,00(
2012 187,50(
2013 =
2014 _
2015 =

On February 7, 2008, the Company received a short ban in the amount of $260,000, an additio280$000 loan on March 10, 2008, and
an additional $300,000 loan on April 14, 2008 (edlively, the “Loans”), from lan Hague, a directdthe Company, which Loans accrue
interest, from the day they are issued and urgildéy they are repaid by the Company, at an amateabf 10%. The Company promises to
repay, in full, the Loan and all the Interest aectthereon on the sooner of: (1) Mr. Hague’s denadteat June 6, 2008; or (2) from the
proceeds of any financing the company receives $4€00,000. The Company may prepay this loanlirafany time. But if it is not repaid
by June 10, 2008, Mr. Hague will have the rightpamother rights available to Mr. Hague under #w, lto convert the loan plus accrued
interest to Common Stock of the Company at theepradculable and on the terms of the Global Golth@a@tion 2006 Stock Incentive

Plan. In addition, Mr. Hague will have the rightaay time to convert the terms of all or a portidrthe Loan to the terms provided to any
third party investor or lender financing the conypain connection with the Loan, pursuant to thenpany’s standing policies, including it's
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and NominaimbGovernance Charter, the Board of Directoré@etithout the participation of Mr.
Hague, reviewed and approved the Loan and its texntsdetermined the borrowings to be in the Comigarest interest. On May 12, 2008,
the Company received an advance of $1,500,000 madditional advance of $800,000 on July 7, 2008€ctively, the “Advances”), from
Mr. Hague on the anticipated signing of the JulyZ108 Agreement. On September 23, 2008, aftetetin@ination of the July 31, 2008
Agreement, the Company restructured the Loanshanddvances into a new agreement (the “Loan ancRgy which became effective
November 6, 2008. Key terms of the Loan and Rgyattlude interest accruing from September 23, 208 the day the loan is repaid

full at an annual rate of 10% and the Company grgra royalty of 1.75% from distributions to ther@pany from the sale of gold and all
other metals produced from the Madre De Dios ptypzrrrently included in the Global Gold Valdiviaift venture with members of the
Quijano family.
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Pursuant to two short-term loan agreements datei 24 2009 for $32,000 and May 4, 2009 for $20,®0e Company borrowed a total of
$52,000 from one of its directors, Nicholas J. Awm. The terms of both agreements include an amate of 10% with repayment on the
sooner of; (1) demand after June 6, 2009; or (nfthe proceeds of any financing the Company reseiyn addition, if the loans are not
repaid by June 10, 2009, the lender will have itjiety among other rights available, to convertltan plus accrued interest to common sh
of the Company at the price calculable and onehmg of the Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock e Plan.

On April 16, 2009 and April 27, 2009, the Companisector and Treasurer, Drury Gallagher, mader@sefree loans of $3,000 and $1,000.

On May 13, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreemenCtmpany borrowed $550,000 from two of its directars Hague ($500,000) and Nichc
J. Aynilian ($50,000). The terms of the agreemaalLide an annual rate of 10% with repayment orstfmmer of: (1) demand after June 1,
2009; (2) from the proceeds of any financing then@any; or (3) from the proceeds of the sale ofriéerést in any Company property. In
addition, if the loans are not repaid by June D09 the lenders will have the right, among otlgiits available, to convert the loan plus
accrued interest to common shares of the Compathe girice calculable and on the terms of the Gl@mdd Corporation 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan. The lenders will also have théatrigntil this and any other loans from you are @@ any time to convert the terms of all or
a portion of this or other loans made pursuanhéotérms provided to any third party investor adier financing the Company.

On August 27, 2009 and September 10, 2009, the @oy'gpDirector and Treasurer, Drury Gallagher, maderést free loans of $20,000 &
$1,500.

On September 14, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreethen€ompany borrowed $50,000 from one of itsaies lan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with regeyran the sooner of: (1) demand after Novemb20Q9; (2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company property. addition, if the loans are not repaid
December 1, 2009, the lenders will have the rightong other rights available, to convert the lolas pccrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegefithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe eepaid at any time to convert the terms of ali portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third partyestor or lender financing the Company.

On October 29, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreerfenCompany borrowed $60,000 from one of its doectan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with regeyran the sooner of: (1) demand after Decemb20Q9; (2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company property. addition, if the loans are not repaid
December 31, 2009, the lenders will have the rigitong other rights available, to convert the Iplus accrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegefithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe eepaid at any time to convert the terms of ali portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third partsestor or lender financing the Company.

On November 12, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreerttenCompany borrowed $10,000 from one of its dieclan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with regaygran the sooner of: (1) demand after Januar@10;2(2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company property. addition, if the loans are not repaid
December 31, 2009, the lenders will have the rigitong other rights available, to convert the Iplus accrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegefithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe eepaid at any time to convert the terms of ali portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third partsestor or lender financing the Company.

On December 10, 2009, the Company’s Director améJurer, Drury Gallagher, made an interest free ¢d&2,000 to the Company.

On December 28, 2009, pursuant to a loan agreemhenGompany borrowed $110,000 from one of itsatiines lan Hague. The terms of the
agreement include an annual rate of 10% with regeyran the sooner of: (1) demand after Februa®p10; (2) from the proceeds of any
financing the Company; or (3) from the proceedthefsale of an interest in any Company properiy. addition, if the loans are not repaid
January 31, 2010, the lenders will have the righitong other rights available, to convert the lolas pccrued interest to common shares of
the Company at the price calculable and on thegefithe Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock Incemflan. The lenders will also have
the right until this and any other loans from yoe gepaid at any time to convert the terms of al portion of this or other loans made
pursuant to the terms provided to any third partyestor or lender financing the Company.
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On February 2, 2010, one of the Company’s Dire¢fidisholas J. Aynilian, made an interest free |0&$5,000 to the Company. The
Company repaid $2,500 to Mr. Aynilian on March @10.

On March 29, 2010, the Company’s Director and Tusars Drury Gallagher, made an interest free |1d&$26,000 to the Company.
On May 20, 2010, the Company'’s Director and Treasurury Gallagher, made an interest free 10a85000 to the Company.
On June 30, 2010, the Company’s Director and TreasDrury Gallagher, made an interest free 10af5000 to the Company.

On July, 15, 2010, July 26, 2010, August 17, 2@dptember 1, 2010 and September 14, 2010, the Guyrsfdairector and Treasurer, Drury
Gallagher, made interest free loans of $5,000,087,$3,000, $3,000 and $6,000, respectively, tdCthmmpany.

On July 1, 2010, July, 15, 2010, August 2, 2010g4st 17, 2010 and September 7, 2010, one of thep@oy's Directors, Nicholas J.
Aynilian, made interest free loans of $5,000, $8,087,500, $3,000 and $9,000, respectively, tadCtbmpany.

On October 4, 2010, one of the Company’s Directdisholas J. Aynilian, made an interest free lo86%000 to the Company.
On October 4, 2010, the Company’s Director and Juegr, Drury Gallagher, made an interest free tfab,000 to the Company.

As of October 10, 2010, the Company owed Drury &giler, the Company’s Director and Treasurer, apprately $19,350 for expense
reimbursement which bears no interest.

As of October 15, 2010, the Company had outstanidiaigs, as discussed above, plus accrued intetashy $5,312,642.95 from three of the
Company'’s Directors, Mr. lan Hague ($5,052,262.8M), Nicholas J. Aynilian ($154,030.68), and Mr.uby Gallagher ($106,350). On
October 19, 2010, the Company’s non-interested neesntif the Board of Directors approved a restruntuin aid of settlement of all this
debt to extinguish and convert this outstanding.d®ursuant to the restructuring, the loans wareelled and became convertible into sh

of the Company’s common stock at $0.15 per shAseof October 22, 2010, the Company had been gieerptance for the entire
conversion. The transaction benefited the Compymeducing the current debt by $5,312,642.95 dindreting the interest from continui
to accrue on these debts. The Company issuedlafd5,417,619 shares of the Company’s commarksidiich are restricted in exchange
for the debt cancellation. The conversion of dabMr. Hague did impact his 1.75% NSR royalty oa Bureo property in Chile and remains
in force.

On December 28, 2010, the Company’s Director améJurer, Drury Gallagher, made an interest free éd&23,500 of which $11,000 was
repaid on March 31, 2011. The remaining $12,50fhzaid as of the date of this filing.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company owed Drurya@her, the Company’s Director and Treasurer, apprately $4,127 for expense
reimbursement which bears no interest and remaiaidras of the date of this filing.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company owes unpagesvaf approximately $740,000 to management. Tdreg@ny is accruing interest at
an annual rate of 9% on the net of taxes wages tovethnagement. As of December 31, 2010, the Coynpad accrued interest of
approximately $48,000.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company had loangaamployees in Armenia of approximately $286,000¢ loans accrue interest at an
annual rate of 14%. The Company did not have anyuad interest as of December 31, 2010.

12. INCOME TAXES

Income taxes are accounted for in accordance Wwitlptovisions of FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Inadiaxes. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax capsences attributable to differences between ttanfiial statement carrying amounts of
existing assets and liabilities and their respectiix bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilitesreasured using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdegnized in income in the period that includesdghactment date. Valuation allowances are
established, when necessary, to reduce deferreabtm®ts to the amounts expected to be realized.

At December 31, 2010, the Company had net deféavedssets of $14,008,000. The Company has prowdeduation allowance, which
increased during 2010 by $1,513,000, against tharfwunt of its deferred tax asset, since thdiliked of realization cannot be determined.
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The following table illustrates the source andustaif the Company's major deferred tax assets Beaémber 31, 2010.

2010 2009
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwa $ 13,533,00 $ 12,048,00
Stock option expense 475,00( 447,00(
Net deferred tax ass 14,008,00 12,495,00
Valuation allowance (14,008,00) (12,495,00)
$ - $ =

The provision for income taxes for year ended Ddmamn31, 2010 and 2009 differs from the amount cdetbby applying the statutory
federal income tax rate (35%) to income before inedaxes as follows:

2010 2009
Income tax benefit computed at statutory rate $ 1,345,000 $ 1,512,00!
State tax benefit (net of federal) 192,00( 216,00(
Permanent differences (book stock comp versussttaok comp) (24,000 (109,001
Increase in valuation allowance (1,513,001 (1,619,001
Provision for income taxes $ - $ -

The Company had net operating loss carry forwasd$aik purposes of approximately $32,200,000 atbdser 31, 2010 expiring at various
dates from 2015 to 2030. A significant portion leéde carry forwards are subject to limitations nual utilization due to "equity structure
shifts" or "owner shifts" involving "5 percent sidwlders” (as defined in the Internal Revenue Gufdi986, as amended), which resulted in
more than a 50 percent change in ownership.

13. COMMON STOCK

On August 1, 2005, Global Gold Mining entered iatshare purchase agreement to acquire the Armbmiged liability company Mego-
Gold, LLC which is the licensee for the Tukhmanuikimg property and surrounding exploration sitesvali as the owner of the related
processing plant and other assets. On August(f,ZBlobal Gold Mining exercised its option to aicquhe remaining forty-nine percent
(49%) of Mego-Gold, LLC, in exchange for one miflidollars ($1,000,000) and five hundred thousaf@,(00) restricted shares of the
Company's common stock with a contingency allovihregsellers to sell back the 500,000 shares orforéd September 15, 2007 for a
payment of $1 million if the Company's stock is tratdled at or above two dollars and fifty cents§$2 at any time between July 1, 2007 and
August 31, 2007. On September 12, 2006, Global Ghitdng loaned two hundred thousand dollars ($200)do Karapet Khachatryan
("Maker"), one of the sellers of Mego-Gold LLC, iizen of the Republic of Armenia, as evidencedalyonvertible promissory note payable
(“Note”) to Global Gold Mining, with interest in @ars on the unpaid principal balance at an amatlequal to ten percent (10%). At any
time following September 18, 2006, the Companytsagole option, had the right to convert all of kdeds debt from the date of the Note to
date of conversion into shares of common stock@f@ompany at the conversion price of $1.50 pereshith all of such shares as security
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for all obligations. Maker pledged two hundredyfifive thousand (255,000) shares of the Comparmyisnton stock as security for his
obligations thereunder. On September 16, 2007cdhé&ngency period expired without exercise, extamer amendment. The Company has
accounted for this by booking the 500,000 shatetheafair market value of $1,000,000, into Addiéd Paid-In Capital. The Company also
booked the $200,000 secured loan into Note Recleivatd accrued interest, from inception of Notpesthe terms of the Note above, into
Additional Paid-In Capital. On February 12, 2088 Company exercised its option and converted tite Bind accrued interest into one
hundred fifty two thousand seven hundred sevemfiyteshares (152,778), which were then cancellesla fesult, the Company recorded bad
debt expense of $151,250 for the difference invéilae of the stock and the amount owed to the Compa

On January 11, 2007, the Company granted 50,00@sbarestricted Common Stock to Harry Gilmoreasnitial director's fee at the fair
market value of $.86 per share.

In December 2008, the Company sold 4,750,000 abi$®.10 per share in a private placement. The umituded 4,750,000 common shares
and 4,750,000 warrants exercisable at $0.15 pee stmal expire on or before December 9, 2013.

14. WARRANTS AND OPTIONS

The Company adopted the 1995 Stock Option Planrumdieh a maximum of 500,000 shares of Common Stoal( be issued (subject to
adjustment for stock splits, dividends and the)like July 2002, the Company granted options tp 180,000 shares of common stock, at an
exercise price of $0.11 per share, to each ofttte Chairman, Drury Gallagher, and President ofXbeapany, Robert Garrison. Of these
options issued, 75,000 vest on the first annivgrefithe date of issuance, and the remaining 75/@80 on the second anniversary of the date
of issuance. These options expire five years filoendate of issuance. As of December 31, 2006¢ threre 200,000 stock awards available
under the Plan for future issuance. On June 314,20e former President and CFO, Mr. Robert Ganrigsigned his office and thereby
forfeited his options. On June 20, 2007, Globald@Zorporation sold $16,500 in common shares, @nsto exemptions from registration
requirements of the Securities Act to Drury Gallaghhe Company's Chairman Emeritus, TreasureSagdetary. The transaction involved
the exercise of options originally issued on JuBe2®02. The transaction involved the issuancEs0f000 shares of common stock at $0.11
per share in accordance with the options. As afeD®er 31, 2007 there were no options remainingtanding under the 1995 Stock Option
Plan.

On June 15, 2006, the Company's stockholders apgritve Global Gold Corporation 2006 Stock IncenBian (the "2006 Stock Incentive
Plan™) under which a maximum of 3,000,000 shargSafimon Stock may be issued (subject to adjustfoeestock splits, dividends and the
like). The 2006 Stock Incentive Plan replaces tbem@any's Option Plan of 1995 which terminated imeJR005. The Company's 2006 Stock
Incentive Plan has a teryear term and will expire on June 15, 2016. On Jil;e2006, the Company granted options to buy ZEDdhares ¢
common stock, at an exercise price of $1.70 peesha the then Chairman and CEO, Drury GallagBerJune 15, 2006, the Company also
granted options to buy 62,500 shares of commorksti@n exercise price of $1.70 per share, tcCibraroller, Jan Dulman. On September
18, 2006, the Company granted options to buy 2@sb@res of common stock, at an exercise pricd @5%er share, to the then Chief
Operating Officer, Michael T. Mason. On Januar2d07, the Company granted options to buy 83,32#eshof common stock, at an exer
price of $0.88 per share, to the Senior Vice Peegifbr Exploration and Development, Hrayr Agneri&@n January 11, 2007, the Company
issued as directors fees to each of the five diredNicholas J. Aynilian, Drury J. Gallagher, Ha@ilmore, lan Hague, and Van Z.
Krikorian) stock options to purchase 100,000 shaféSommon Stock of the Company each at $.86 pareshOn June 15, 2007, the
Company granted options to buy 116,666 sharesrofman stock, at an exercise price of $0.83 per shatbe Senior Vice President for
Exploration and Development, Hrayr Agnerian. Onel5, 2007, the Company granted options to buy0D&Gshares of common stock, at
an exercise price of $0.83 per share, to the Ghiefncial Officer, Jan Dulman. On June 20, 200iGhdel T. Mason, the Company’s
President, resigned from his position and forfet@ptions to buy 100,000 shares of common stocknatxercise price of $1.25 and his
additional vested options to buy 100,000 sharemofmon stock have expired unexercised as of Deae®ih@008. On October 1, 2007, the
Company granted options to buy 15,000 shares ofraamstock, at an exercise price of $1.00 per shar@ consultant, Paul Airasian, which
expired on December 31, 2009. On April 8, 2008,@lmmpany granted options to each of the five thredo buy 100,000 (500,000 total)
shares of common stock, at an exercise price d5§er share. On March 31, 2009, three months tkéetermination of his employment,
Hrayr Agnerian’s vested options to buy 200,000 skaf common stock have expired unexercised acuptdithe terms of his employment
agreement. On May 18, 2009, the Company grantgdngpto each of the five directors to buy 100,080,000 total) shares of common
stock, at an exercise price of $0.20 per shareM@éw 18, 2009, pursuant to Mr. Gallagher’'s employheagreement extension under his
contract and as confirmed by the independent cosgtiem committee and board of directors, Mr. Gdidtagvas granted stock options to
purchase 166,667 shares of common stock of the @oyngt $0.20 per share vesting on November 18,.2@8May 18, 2009, the Company
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granted to Courtney Fellowes, the Company’s Viaskent of Business Development and Investor Relgtistock options to purchase
100,000 shares of common stock of the Company.20%8er share vesting on June 18, 2009 which eXpinexercised on March 31,

2010. On August 12, 2009, the Company grantediidQliman, the Company’s Chief Financial Officetock options to purchase 225,000
shares of common stock of the Company at $0.14lpee (based on the closing price at his reneveafing in equal quarterly installments
over the term of his employment agreement. On 1@n€010, the Company granted options to eacheofite directors to buy 100,000
(500,000 total) shares of common stock, at an eseprice of $0.10 per share. On June 19, 201@uput to Mr. Gallagher's employment
agreement extension under his contract and asrowediby the independent compensation committedoaad of directors, Mr. Gallagher
was granted stock options to purchase 100,000 slksdi@dmmon stock of the Company at $0.10 per shesting on November 19, 2010. On
October 14, 2010, the Company granted options yod,000 shares of common stock, at an exercise pfi$0.25 per share, to a consultant,
Paul Airasian, which vest on December 31, 2010exmire on December 31, 2012.

On December 31, 2008, Warrants, that were prewagended through December 31, 2008, expired.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock ogtissing a Black-Scholes valuation model and tHeviing assumption terms: 10 years
interest rate: 5.0% to 5.7%; volatility: 100 - 360¥he expense is recorded in the Consolidated iG&tts of Operations.

The fair value of options granted at December 8102and 2009 was $60,000 and $74,167, respectively.

The following tables illustrates the Company's kte@rrant and option issuances and balances odistaas of, and during the years er
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, resplctive

WARRANTS OPTIONS STOCK AWARDS
Shares Weighted Shares Weighted Restricted Weighted
Underlying Average Underlying Average Stock Average
Exercise Exercise Market
Warrants Price Warrants Price Awards Price
Outstanding at December 31, 2008 4,750,000 $ 0.1C 1,677,500 $ 0.9C 5,604,66: $ 0.67
Granted - - 991,66° 0.1¢ 1,965,83: 0.12
Canceled - - (215,001 0.8¢€ - =
Exercised - - - - - -
Sold in units - - - - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2009 4,750,000 $ 0.1C 2,454,116 $ 0.61 7,570,50. $ 0.67
Granted - - 640,00( 0.11 120,00( 0.1C
Canceled - - (100,001 0.2C - =
Exercised (2,500,001 0.1C - - - -
Sold in units - - - - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2010 2,250,000 $ 0.1C 2,994,16° $ 0.52 7,690,50. $ 0.6€
Vested shares and fair value 2,250,000 $ 0.1C 284416 $ 0.54 6,846,75. $ 0.7z

In the twelve months ended December 31, 2010 afé,2Bere were no options exercised. Pursuamtetaécision of the non-interested
members of the Board of Directors on October 1902¢he Company has amended the outstanding wantréice price per share from $0.15
to $0.10. In the twelve months ended Decembe2B10, there were 2,500,000 warrants exercise atftbitwelve months ended December
31, 2009, there were no warrants exercised. Thenfimg is additional information with respect toet Company's options and warrants as of
December 31, 2010.
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WARRANTS OUTSTANDING

WARRANTS
EXERCISABLE

Number of Weighted Number of
Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Average Shares Remaining Average Shares Average
Exercise Underlying Contractual Exercise Underlying Exercise
Price Warrants Life Price Warrants Price
$ 0.1C 2,250,001 294 years $ 0.1C 2,250,000 $ 0.1c
OPTIONS
OPTIONS OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE
Number of Weighted Number of
Outstanding Average Weighted Exercisable Weighted
Average Shares Remaining Average Shares Average
Exercise Underlying Contractual Exercise Underlying Exercise
Price Options Life Price Options Price
$ 0.4¢ 2,994,16 6.29years $ 0.5Z 2,844,16 $ 0.5¢

The average intrinsic value of warrants and optexercisable at December 31, 2010 is $469,083.aVheage intrinsic value of warrants
options outstanding at December 31, 2010 is $485,58

15. AGREEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

On January 18, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enter&mlari'Labrador Uranium Claims Agreement" with Maesgklexander Turpin and James
Weick to acquire an option to acquire a one hungexdent interest ownership of mineral licensetggit or near Grand Lake (approximately
1,850 acres) and Shallow Lake (approximately 5@&@s). Global Gold Uranium will be solely respbifsifor exploration and management
during the option periods and can exercise theoogt acquire one hundred percent of the licertgegiat either property by granting the
sellers a 1.5% NSR royalty which can be boughtfau$2,000,000 cash or at the seller's option immon stock of the Company valued at
the six month weighted average of the stock atithe of exercise. All dollar references are to Ghaa dollars. Global Gold Uranium will
earn a One Hundred Percent (100%) option in therises by paying cash and common stock (20,000sshmtial deposit). In addition,
Global Gold Uranium has completed staking 300 ctafapproximately 18,531 acres) in the immediataiticof the Grand Lake and Shall
Lake properties. With respect to the Shallow Lakeasaction, the sellers breached a representatidnvarranty to keep the license rights in
force for a period after acquisition, several & licenses lapsed, and Global Gold Uranium, iowa name, successfully staked the same
licenses in June 2007. The Company has not istieeiditial 20,000 shares of Common Stock of the Gany as of December 31, 2009, and
has phased out of these properties. The liceresasédxpired as of September 30, 2009.

On April 12, 2007, Global Gold Uranium enterecbian agreement to acquire an option for the CoehPand license area ("the Agreeme
with Commander Resources Ltd. ("Commander") andstayer Uranium Corp. ("Bayswater"). The CochranedParoperty consists of 2,6l
claims within 61,000 hectares (approximately 158,@0res). The Agreement is subject to board appanvd the conclusion of an

option agreement which the relevant boards subsdiguepproved. Major terms include the followingoBal Gold Uranium may earn a 51%
equity interest over a period of four years in Gacdle Pond Property by completing; Cash paymenritsSo$700,000 over four year period,;
Share issuance of 350,000 shares of Global Golgdzation (50 % each to Commander and Bayswater)afeur year period; Property
expenditures over four year period of C$3.5 million

Either party may, at any time up to the commencémmeoommercial production, elect to convert itspective interest to a 2% gross uranium

sales royalty in the case of a uranium deposit2¥a\NSR in the case of a non-uranium deposit.threeicase, 50% of the royalty obligation
may be purchased at any time prior to commerciadypcetion for a $1,000,000 cash payment.
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As of June 30, 2007, the Company has paid $2060080ssued 150,000 shares of the Company's comiook §5,000 shares each to
Commander and Bayswater.

On October 17, 2008, the Company through Globatl®&yknium entered into an agreement (the "RoyafiyeAment") with Commander and
Bayswater pertaining to the Cochrane Pond Proftiréy“Property”) located in southern Newfoundlahdttis owned 50% by Commander
and 50% by Bayswater through a joint venture (8BJV”). The Company originally entered into an agnent acquiring an option (the
“Option Agreement”) on the Property with Commanded Bayswater on April 12, 2007. The Royalty Agneet grants Global Gold a
royalty in the Property and terminates Global Gelofe-existing rights and obligations associatet RWroperty.

The key terms of the Royalty Agreement are thatGRdV shall provide a royalty to Global Gold foamium produced from the Property in
the form of a 1% gross production royalty from $iade of uranium concentrates (yellowcake) capp&Dait $1 million after which the
royalty shall be reduced to a 0.5% royalty.

The royalty shall remain attached to the Propemtyia the name of Global Gold or GGU as requiredaurthe local laws and exchange
regulations. The royalty shall survive the sald aransfer of the property to a third party.

In consideration for the royalty, Global Gold agtee pay a total of $50,000 cash, $25,000 cash eaClommander and Bayswater, on or
before November 14, 2008. The Company paid $26¢88h each to Commander and Bayswater on Novelb@008.

On August 9, 2007 and August 19, 2007, the Compizmngugh Minera Global, entered agreements to fajoint venture and on October 29,
2007, the Company closed its joint venture agre¢nvégh members of the Quijano family by which MiaeBlobal assumed a 51% interest in
the placer and hard rock gold Madre de Dios an@dproperties. The name of the joint venture campg Compania Minera Global Gold
Valdivia S.C.M. (“Global Gold Valdivia” or “GGV").

Key agreement terms for the Madre De Dios jointuemagreement include a 1,000,000 euro paymemt @tobal Gold (paid as of October
30, 2007), and the following joint venture termsiigginterests set at 51%-49% in favor of Globald@Gof the 3 directors, two (Mr. Krikorian
and Dr. Ted Urquhart, Global's Vice President inttago) are appointed by Global Gold; Global Gaddhenits to finance at least one plant
and mining operation within 6 months as well aswdually agreed exploration program to establistveroreserves, if that is successful, two
additional plants/operations will be financed; frtim profits of the joint venture, Global Gold wildy its partner an extra share based on the
following scale of 28 million euros for (a) 5 mdh ounces of gold produced in 5 years or (b) Siomlbunces of gold proven as reserves
according to Canadian National Instrument 43-10dI ¢3-101") standards in 5 years. The 6 monthgailon was amended and extended by
the October 27, 2007 Pact to a period of 3 ye@te definitions of proven and probable reserveslid3-101 reports differ from the
definitions in SEC Industry Guide 7. Also, the S&@&s not recognize the terms “measured resouncemdicated resources” or “inferred
resources” which are used in NI 43-101 reportse Thmpany has not financed any plants as of Deae&ih009.

On July 24, 2009, Global Gold entered into an ameard with members of the Quijano family (“Quijanad)the October 29, 2007 Global
Gold Valdivia joint venture subject to final boaagdproval on or before July 31, 2009 whereby GGV bécome wholly owned by Global
Gold and retain only the Pureo Claims Block (apprmtely 8,200 hectares), transferring the MadreDixes claims block to the sole
ownership to members of the Quijano family. Ory 28, 2009, the amendment was approved by the Coyrgpboard of directors.

Key terms of the amendment included that on orfeefaugust 15, 2009, GGV transfer to Quijano orddsignee one hundred percent (10
interest in the current GGV claims identified as Madre De Dios Claims Block and Quijano transfeGtobal Gold one hundred percent
(100%) interest in the GGV, or its designee, amdrédmaining claims identified as the Pureo ClairtcR All transfers were closed in
Santiago, Chile on August 14, 2009 which termindledjoint venture. If GGV does not commence poidun on a commercial basis on the
property being transferred to its sole control parg to this agreement within two years (subjecrtp time taken for permitting purposes),
the property shall revert to Quijano.

Quijano shall be entitled a 3% NSR royalty inteiastll metals produced from the properties retaimeGGV up to a maximum of 27 milli
Euros, subject to Quijan®’initial repayment of $200,000 to Global Gold. Foree years, GGV or its designee shall have fat g first
refusal on any bona fide offers for all or any pErthe properties transferred to Quijano (to bereised within five (5) days). For three ye
Quijano shall also have a right of first refusalamy bona fide offers for all or any part of themerties retained by GGV or its designee (t
exercised within twenty (20) days).
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On October 27, 2010, the Company entered into aeeagent with Conventus Ltd. a BVI corporation (“@entus”)for the sale of 100
interest in the GGV which holds the Pureo miningeds in Chile. The Company will provide Convenwish consulting services a
technical assistance for development, productiaplogation, and expansion of the GGV mining projsrtin further consideration of t
payment terms below.

Key terms include that Conventus shall pay $5.0ianilUSD over four years and two months payabldolews: $250,000 on or befc
October 31, 2010; $250,000 on or before Novembe2800; $500,000 at the closing on or before M&th2011; $1,000,000 on or bef
December 31, 2011; $1,000,000 on or before DeceR®ibe?012; $1,000,000 on or before December 313284d $1,000,000 on or befi
December 31, 2014 until $5,000,000 in total hasnbeaid. If the sale does not close, the Compamesponsible for repayment of
$500,000 in payments made prior to closing baseions contingent upon the reason for the closimgpt occur. Payments to the Comg
will be secured. As of October 27, 2010, Converttds shall be solely responsible, at its own expefoseall expenses and other mat
required by contract or law to comply with conditorelated to the Pureo property, and in particuldh the July 24, 2009 contract
condition to commence production on a commercialshan the property being transferred to its solgml pursuant to this agreement ol
before August 15, 2011(subject to any time takerp&mitting purposes).

As additional consideration, if within seven yea@snventus or any of its successors produces 16@0Aces of gold from the GGV prope
or property in Chile which the Company assists G&\Conventus in acquiring, then Conventus shadhall cause GGV to pay the Comp
a oneeff and once only $2,500,000 bonus within 60 ddyaahieving such production. The closing of thegaction is subject to a definit|
agreement and agreement being reached with Mitd&gue, with respect to his royalty to the satiséacbf Conventus. The closing dat
anticipated to be on or before March 31, 2011.e Sabsequent Events for an update on the salertee@tus.

On September 5, 2007, the Company entered intofidenmtial agreement which was made public on Cat@9, 2007, with members of the
Quijano family by which the Company has the optomarn a 51% interest in the Estrella del Sur &d&tinum project on Ipun Island and
another Gold-Platinum property on Chiloe Island.

Key agreement terms for the Estrella del Sur anitb€Ilprojects required Global Gold to pay approxieha$160,000 to cover government
and license fees in exchange for an exclusive pptitil January 30, 2008 to review, explore, arrdnf@int ventures on the properties. On or
before January 31, 2008, at Global Gold's soleoaptither or both of the properties shall be tiemed to a new joint venture company (or
two separate companies on the same terms). Fopbopterties and in consideration for forming thiefjeenture, Global Gold shall pay
1,500,000 euros (or the Chilean peso equivalentheriollowing schedule: 1. January 31, 2008, 280 68uros; 2. July 31, 2008, 250,000
euros; 3. January 30 2009, 500,000 euros; andy3112009, 500,000 euros. The Company receiveekéansion of the first payment date
March 31, 2008. On April 8, 2008, the board okdiors of the Company approved an amendment exkMaech 31, 2008 to the above
option agreement for mining properties on Ipunridland Chiloe Island in Southern Chile. The keynteof the amendment transfer the
Chiloe and Ipun licenses to the existing Globald3éaldivia company and require the Company to @el®50,000 restricted shares of
Common Stock of the Company on or before May 18200he 250,000 restricted shares were issued oih &2008.

If either or both properties continue to productéond reserves are proven by the prefeasibilitysamaging studies, Global Gold's partner will
be entitled to an extra share based on the follgwaale of 37,000,000 euros (15,000,000 for Chiloe 22,000,000 for Ipun) for 3,700,000
commercially reasonable recoverable ounces of lolsl platinum (calculated on a gold price equivalEsis, using the monthly average of
the New York COMEX price for the month in which calations of proven reserves are made accordi@at@adian 43-101 standards) based
on the prefeasibility and scoping studies. Paymefit€ome as the joint venture produces gold atipum as mutually agreed from no more
than 25% of Global Gold's profit from the joint vere. Part of the payments may be in Global Gaddisbn mutually agreeable terms. The
economic value of any other materials besides gofalatinum shall not be calculated as part of thismula and instead will be shared
according to joint venture terms. After the prefedity and scoping studies, each party shall caisywn share of the costs.

On October 3, 2008, the Company entered into ageagent to sell all of the Company'’s interest irdtsloe and Ipun island properties in
Chile, held by a Joint Venture with the Quijano fignto the Quijano family. The agreement was doded by October 15, 2008 and the
properties transferred to the purchaser as of Nbeerh, 2008.

The consideration for the sale of the Chiloe andhlsland properties include the following to GlbBald or its designee: (a) $200,000 USD,

fifty percent of which will be paid at the closiagd the other fifty percent to be paid within siggys; (b) certain second hand equipment and
parts used for mining which are currently on onusehthe territory of the Global Gold Valdivia joiménture to be specified in the mutually
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agreed transfer documents, including a Catergi# wheel loader, a Warner Swasey excavator, @atexpillar 290 kva generator; (c)
certain land rights, buildings and improvementsclitare currently on or around the territory of @lebal Gold Valdivia joint

venture, generally described as an approximatedytfectare property, known as Lote N°11, situantelureo, where Amparo and Pureo
mining properties are located, and approximateiyhtectares including two properties with their dings, situated in the area where the
mining property Guadalupe 61-120 is located, alt@be specified in the mutually agreed transterudnents; and (d) a first priority right of
payment from the profits of the Global Gold Valdiyoint venture company of $200,000 USD.

March 24, 2009, the Company signed a supply condigieement with Industrial Minerals SA (“IM”), av&s Company. The agreement is
for IM to purchase all of the gold and silver conirate produced at the Company's Tukhmanuk faclity5% of LBMA less certain
treatment and refining charges.

On April 6, 2009, the Company sold approximatelyt@@nes of gold and silver concentrate pursuaristagreement with IM. The
concentrate was delivered on April 18, 2009. Hrdtive amount due to the Company was $63,44&afhwthe Company received a pre-
payment of $31,724 on April 20, 2009. The Compaeteived $16,140 on May 27, 2009 and $14,425 ondu009. The final sales amo
after charges and adjustments was $62,289.

On July 23, 2009, the Company sold approximatelyodies of gold and silver concentrate pursuaitstagreement with IM. The
concentrate was delivered on August 4, 2009. €htative amount due to the Company was $77,255hafhwthe Company received a par
payment of $65,664 on August 11, 2009. On OctdBe2009, the Company received $8,688 as final payiior its sale in July 2009 to
IM. The final sales amount after charges and adljests was $74,352.

On January 28, 2010, the Company sold and delivegppdoximately 59 tonnes of gold and silver con@atpursuant to its agreement with
IM. The tentative amount due to the Company va&&3 of which the Company received a partial paynof $77,189 on January 28,
2010. The final sales amount after charges angsadgnts was $77,189.

On February 25, 2010, the Company, through its lytmined subsidiary Mego Gold, LLC (“Mego”) enterido an agreement with IM to
provide Mego with an advance of $450,000 from INdiagt future sales of gold and silver concentréte (Advance”). The Advance was
provided by IM on February 26, 2010.

Key terms include; that Mego provides IM with anckesive offtake agreement for its gold and silver concentimatérmenia throug
December 31, 2012; for 2009 and until February2#8,0, the price IM paid Mego for gold and silvencentrate was calculated basec
85% of the London AM/PM Gold Fixation and Londorv8i Spot (“London Rates”until Mego delivers 2,250 metric tons of conce e
85% is reduced to 80%, after 2,250 metric tons tmeen delivered the price will revert to 85% of don Rates; Mego provides IM witt
security interest in its current ore stockpile im?enia; and the Company provides for a corporateaniee for repayment of the Advance.

On October 14, 2010, the Company sold and delivapgdoximately 56 tonnes of gold and silver con@atpursuant to its agreement with
IM. The tentative amount due to the Company wiZ6$L73. The final sales amount after chargesadpdstments was $104,567 which was
applied against the Advance the Company receiwvad fM.

On October 28, 2010, the Company sold and delivappdoximately 55 tonnes of gold and silver congatpursuant to its agreement with
IM. The tentative amount due to the Company wi3%90. The final sales amount after chargesadngstments was $97,570 which was
applied against the Advance the Company receivad fM.

On December 13, 2010, the Company sold and detivegperoximately 55 tonnes of gold and silver cotreda pursuant to its agreement v
IM. The tentative amount due to the Company wid9$7/28. The final sales amount after chargesadpdstments was $79,142 which was
applied against the Advance the Company receivad fM.

On October 27, 2009, the Company issued a presaselannouncing the first stage of approval ofvesdor its Toukhmanuk expansion.
The Republic of Armenia’s State Natural Resourcgsmiy (the "Agency") issued its certificate basedhe proposal of the Agency’s State
Geological Expert Commission made during its Octd@3 2009 session. The total ore reserve appravas roughly 21,900,000 tonnes with
an average gold grade of 1.62 grams per tonneuwatt @f grade of 0.80 grams per tonne and an aeesdger grade of 4.88 grams per tonne.
Total approved reserves in the C1 and C2 categareesoughly 35.614 tonnes (or 1,145,000 ouncegplaf and 107 tonnes (or 3,440,000
ounces) of silver. In its approval, the Agency atitteat the “approved reserves entirely corresporttié requirements for Measured and
Indicated reserves under International Standards."
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On November 18, 2009, the Company issued a présaseeannouncing that following up on the issuafdbe approving a first stage g
reserve, the Republic of Armenia’s State Naturadrieces Agency (the “Agencyhas delivered its full decision with backup caltiglas or
November 13, 2009 confirming an additional goldotese in the inferred category. The Agency issugdi€cision based on the propos:
the Agencys State Geological Expert Commission made durisgittober 23, 2009 session. A copy of the offiajproval and a parti
unofficial translation are available on the companyebsite www.globalgoldcorp.com

The approved gold resource in the Inferred categop tonnes (or 1,225,276 ounces), which togetlithrthe approved 1.145 million ounc
of reserves marks a sharp increase from the 8réeapproved under GKZ decision N28 of January2@64. The reserve and resource
estimates were concluded at a cutoff grade of taghg per tonne (please refer to the “CautionareNot).S. Investors” on page 3 of this
report).

On December 18, 2009, the Company entered intgeeement with Caldera Resources Inc. (“Caldeoat)ining the terms for a joint vent
on the Company’s Marjan property in Armenia (“MarjaV").

Key terms include that Caldera shall, subject tmgand conditions, earn a 55% interest in the &agold-Silver-Polymetallic Project after
completing a bankable feasibility study on the pcojpr spending US$3.0M on the property.

As additional consideration, Caldera made a nonnadible US$50,000 deposit by December 30, 2009sanéd 500,000 shares of the
company on a post-consolidated basis. Calderaalsiti make a payment of US$100,000 no later tharcivia®@, 2010. A definitive agreement
will be signed as soon as possible, upon completiatue diligence review, respective board appmeald any regulatory approval that may
be required. The Company received the US$50,0p0steon December 29, 2009.

On March 24, 2010, the Company entered into an dateagreement with Caldera establishing the teoma joint venture on the Compasy’
Marjan property in Armenia (“Marjan JV”) which anmssthe December 18, 2009 agreement.

Key terms include that Caldera shall own 55% ofgshares of a newly created joint venture compaegoine the operator of the project, and
be responsible for all expenses. To maintain3& interest, Caldera is obligated to spend up t& 8800,000 on the Property, issue 500
shares of Caldera and make a payment of US$ 100000 before March 30, 2010 to Global Gold Corgiora The joint venture board sh
have two Caldera representatives and one Global fepresentative. However, certain actions inclgdidoption of the annual operating i
capital budgets require unanimous consent. Shoaldera not perform in accordance with the termthefMarjan JV, then Global Gold will
have 100% interest of the Marjan JV transferreklzandd Caldera will receive an NSR on the Marjarpprty equal to .5% for each tranche
US$ 1,000,000 up to a maximum NSR of 3% without proyating.

Also under the joint venture agreement Calderaavith 100% in the Marjan Gold-Silver Project by nrakguarterly payments totaling US$
2,850,000, starting September 30, 2010. If Caldgsses one of its quarterly payments based dailtse to raise funds from capital
markets, it is entitled to an automatic 30 day esi@n from each quarterly payment; if Caldera dié$aan an extended payment then Caldera
shall forfeit its shares of the Marjan JV, be redid of its investment commitment, but still be labor the payments to Global Gold which
shall accrue interest at 10%, and possibly retaiyalty interest as described above. If Caldeakes its payments and completes its
obligations, Global Gold will retain a 1.5% NSR alhproduction on the Central zone and a 2.5% N8RIbproduction on the Northern
zone. Caldera can prepay the payments, fulfilitlrestment commitment, and take 100% interesheflV at any time.

The agreement was subject to approval by the TSXurfe Exchange and the Board of Directors of tlspeetive companies. As of April 30,
2010, Caldera paid the Company $100,000 and retdi8x Venture Exchange approval on the transaeiwhwas waiting for final approv
of its 43-101 to finalize the transaction. On J&Be2010, the transaction was closed.

On October 7, 2010, the Company terminated theadvial) due to lack of performance by Caldera. SsgalProceedings for more
information on the Marjan JV termination.

On March 26, 2010, the Company, through its whollined subsidiary Mego Gold, LLC (“Mego”) enteretbia credit line agreement for 1
billion Armenian Drams (approximately $2,500,000)hwArmbusinessbank Close Joint Stock Company (“ABB Yerevan, Armenia. The
credit line includes a grace period on repaymetit April 20, 2011, is not revolving, may be pregait any time, and is to be drawn down

towards equipment purchases, construction, andnsiqraof the existing plant and operations to iaseeproduction capacity to 300,000
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tonnes of ore per year at Megorukhmanuk property in Armenia. The loan is fgesiod of 5 years through March 20, 2015, beaesést a
14% for amounts borrowed, and bears interest ata2%imount available but not borrowed. The loam&le and payable in local AMD
currency. As security, 100% of the Mego sharesthadnining right certified by the Mining Licensgyfeement #287 with Purpose of Sub-
Surface Exploitation and Mining License #HA-L-1463Ssued on August 5, 2005.

The Company rents office space in a commerciatimglat 45 East Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, CT witeigned a 5-year lease starting on
March 1, 2006 at a starting annual rental cosédf800. On October 1, 2006, the Company expandeiffite space by assuming the leas
the adjacent office space. The assumed lease $sthien one year remaining, through September8®, 2t an annual rental cost of
$19,500. The assumed lease was extended for @oadtyear through September 30, 2009 at an dmeutal cost of $22,860 for that
period. The assumed lease was further extendedgh October 15, 2009 at which point the Compamated the additional

space. Messrs.Gallagher and Krikorian gave petguraaantees of the Company's performance forithetivo years of the lease. See
Subsequent Events for an update on the Comparfice apace.

16. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

GGH, which is the license holder for the Hankavad Elarjan properties, was the subject of corruptiamproper demands and threats from
the former Minister of the Ministry of Environmeahd Natural Resources of Armenia, Vardan AyvaZidre Company reported this situat
to the appropriate authorities in Armenia and m thited States. Although the Minister took theipms that the licenses at Hankavan and
Marjan were terminated, other Armenian governmeuiffitials assured the Company to the contrary Amdenian public records confirmed
the continuing validity of the licenses. The Compagceived independent legal opinions that alt®ficenses are valid and remain in full
force and effect, continued to work at those prtipgrand engaged international and local counsglitsue prosecution of the illegal and
corrupt practices directed against the subsidiagjuding international arbitration. On November2006, the Company initiated the thirdgy
good faith negotiating period (which is a preregaio filing for international arbitration undére 2003 SHA, LLC Share Purchase
Agreement) with the three named shareholders aagpviously undisclosed principal, Mr. AyvazianeT@ompany filed for

arbitration under the rules under the Internati@t@mber of Commerce, headquartered in Paris cEfgdiCC") on December 29, 2006. The
forum for this arbitration is New York City, andetthearing is currently still pending. On June ZH)8, the Federal District Court for the
Southern District of New York ruled that Mr. Ayvari was required to appear as a respondent in Batfitration. On September 5, 2008,
the ICC International Court of Arbitration rulecatiMr. Ayvazian shall be a party in accordance i decision rendered on June 25, 2008
by the Federal District Court for the Southern Béstof New York. In addition and based on the Rignenia Bilateral Investment Treaty,
Global Gold Mining filed a request for arbitratiagainst the Republic of Armenia for the actionshef former Minister of Environment and
Natural Resources with the International CentreSfeitlement of Investment Disputes, which is a conemt agency of the World Bank
Washington, D.C., ("ICSID") on January 29, 2007.&gust 31, 2007, the Government of Armenia and@l&old Mining jointly issued
the following statement, "{they} jointly announdest they have suspended the ICSID arbitration penddbnclusion of a detailed settlement
agreement. The parties have reached a confidegfiabment in principle, and anticipate that thalfsettlement agreement will be reached
within 10 days of this announcement.” The Compaaylearned from public records that GeoProMinindy Lthrough an affiliate, has beco
the sole shareholder of an Armenian Company, Goldlen LLC, which was granted an illegal and competicense for Hankavan.
GeoProMining Ltd. is subject to the 20% obligatiasssuccessor to Sterlite Resources, Ltd. As bfugey 25, 2008 Global Gold Mining has
entered into a conditional, confidential settlemagrteement with the Government of the Republic whénia to discontinue the ICSID
arbitration proceedings. This agreement does fietiethe pending ICC arbitration involving simiksubject matter.

On June 17, 2010, Global Gold Corporation anditssiliary Global Gold Mining, LLC (collectively “®Gbal”) and Caldera Resources,
(“Caldera”) announced TSX- approval of their March 24, 2010 joint venturere@gment to explore and bring the Marjan propertp
commercial production. As previously reported, pheperty is held with a twenty-five year “speaiaining license, effective April 22, 200
and expiring April 22, 2033, which expanded theplicense term and substantially increased thenfe area. The license required payn
of annual governmental fees and the performarfogook at the property as submitted and approvethe mining plan which includ
mining of 150,000 tonnes of mineralized rock betwdgril 22, 2008 and April 21, 2011, as well as lexation work to have additior
reserves approved under Armenian Law in order totaia the licenses in good standing. Calderasatl/iGlobal as well as governme
authorities that it would not be complying with thverk requirements which prompted 90 day termimatiotices from the government and
October 7, 2010 joint venture termination noticenfr Global, which Global had agreed to keep the iteation notice confidential un
October 15, 2010.

The joint venture agreement provided that Caldevalavbe solely responsible for license complianeé eonducting the approved min

plan, and that 1[n the event that Caldera does not, or is othewisable to, pursue this project and pay to Gl@wmtl the amounts provid
for hereunder, Caldera’s rights to the Property thedshares of Marjan-Caldera Mining LLC shall bedited and replaced by a Net Smelter
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Royalty (the “NSR”).” Caldera did not meet the tineld to earn any NSR under the agreement, amibiise of license nogempliance &
well as its failure to pay resulted in an autom#itnination of its rights by operation of the agrent. The agreement provided that Cal
would deliver 500,000 of its shares to Global, jsgbto final approvals of this agreement by theXTW&nture Exchange.The TSX Ventur
Exchange approval was issued in June and Caldiéed fa deliver the shares. Subject to a 30 dagresion if it could not raise the funds
capital markets, Caldera agreed to make a $30(89mMent to the Company on September 30, 2010 andrbeer 31, 2010; $250,000
March 30, 2011, June 30, 2011, September 30, 2D&&ember 30, 2011, March 30, 2012, June 30, 204@,September 30, 2012; ¢
$500,000 on December 31, 2012. Caldera raisetti®uff funds, but did not make these payments.

In addition, Global's October 7, 2010 terminatiastioe noted Caldera’illegal behavior in registering charter changasrtiul to and withot
the consent of Global, material misrepresentat@mmtechnical and other matters, and more. Calofificals have also engaged in behavic
odds with the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, whioh Company has reported to Armenian and US Gowvenbofficials. Caldera officials ¢
currently under criminal investigation, and Globak brought an action pending in Armenian couddaect Caldera’s illegal reegistratior

of share in Armenia. Separately, there is an ratiiin pending in New York whereby Caldera is segldonfirmation through the Americ
Arbitration Association of the joint ventusekxistence, and Global is seeking $850,000 ofuaccbut unpaid amounts at the contractua

of 10% interest, the 500,000 shares of stock Caldailed to deliver in June 2010, and damages fald€&a’s other breaches, non-
performance, and attacks on Global.

The Company is aware that another company basddrig Kong began publicly trading shares in the Wit the name Globalgold
Corp. The Company'’s counsel has sent the othepanyna cease and desist letter for using the simdme and request that it change its
name.

The Company is subject to various legal proceedamgkclaims that arise in the ordinary course airmss. In the opinion of management,
the amount of any ultimate liability with respeatthese actions will not materially affect the C@nyp's consolidated financial statements or
results of operations. The Company has been btdagiourt by several disgruntled former employaed contractors for unpaid salaries and
invoices, respectively, as well as some penaltesdn payment which totals approximately $350,008e Company has recorded a liability
for the actual unpaid amounts due to these indal&laf approximately $130,000 as of December 31020rhe Company is currently, and
will continue to, vigorously defending its positioncourts against these claims that are withouitm@&he Company is also negotiating
directly with these individuals outside of the dsun attempt to settle based on the amounts cii¢heéal amounts due as recorded by the
Company in exchange for prompt and full payment.

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In accordance with ASC 855, “Subsequent EventsQbmpany evaluated subsequent events after thedeatdneet date of December 31,
2010 through the date of this filing.

a) As of March 17, 2011, Global Gold Corporatitiee("Company" or "Global Gold") entered into anesgnent with Consolidated Resoul
USA, LLC, a Delaware company (“CR") for a joint ware on the Compang’ Toukhmanuk and Getik properties in Armenia
“Properties”). Upon payment of the initial congialiion (“Initial Consideration”as provided below, Global Gold and CR will work étige
for twelve months (the “12 Month Periodd develop the Properties and cause the Propéoties contributed to a new joint venture comg
“Newco”, whose identity and terms will be mutuallgreed, (the “JVC”).This agreement enables Global Gold to completecitsen
Toukhmanuk production expansion to 300,000 tonmesypar and advance exploration in Armenia. Rasiaubaibased principal advisc
company, acted as sole advisor on the transaction.

The JVC will (i) own, develop and operate Toukhnilaand Getik, (ii) be a company listed on an excleafujy admitted to trading and (i
have no liabilities, obligations, contingent or n@t commitments except pursuant to the Shareholigreement. Global Golsl'ownership i
the JVC shall be the greater value of either 51%ermro forma value of $40.0 million in newly igslistock of the JVC at the end of the
Month Period. Current Global Gold director lan Hagand Chairman Van Krikorian will serve on the JW@ard, which will reflect tr
parties’ interests. CR and Global Gold will alsorfi a technical committee to oversee exploratiah@oduction matters.

Other key terms include CR paying initial considiera of $5,000,000 as a working capital commitmghtitial Consideration”)to Globa
Gold payable by; a $500,000 Advance immediatelijpfahg the execution of the Agreement (the “Advaicé1,400,000 payable followir
the satisfactory completion of due diligence by &Rl the execution of definitive documents in 30sdfigm the date of this Agreement;
$3,100,000 according to a separate schedule imadvand payable within 5 business days of the émdery calendar month as needec
CR elects not to close the transaction describékisnagreement based on its findings during thel@pdue diligence period, GGC shall h
nine months to repay the Advance with 6% interest.
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In a proportion to be mutually agreed and payabl&E2 months from the date of the signing of a diéfi@ agreement (the “12 Month Perigd”
$40.0 million in cash and/or newly issued stocktaf 1VC and a Net Smelter Royalty, if any, to berdef in the definitive agreement (
“Remaining Consideration”)Any unused working capital from the Initial Congidiéon is to be added to the Remaining Considardiic
payment to Global Gold.

b) On March 31, 2011, we received the $500,000imdppayment funding from Conventus Ltd., a BVI amigtion (“Conventus”)per the
terms of the agreement signed on October 27, 204@he sale of 100% interest in the Compania Min8labal Gold Valdivia S.C.\
company (“GGV”) which holds the Pureo mining asset€hile. Shares of GGV will be transferredatcordance with the agreement.

c) As of April 1, 2011, the Company has moved dgorate headquarters from Greenwich, CT to Rye, Nllife new contact information is:

Global Gold Corporation

International Corporate Center at Rye
555 Theodore Fremd Avenue, Suite C208
Rye, New York 10580

Tel: 914-925-0020

Fax: 914-925-8860
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Exhibit 21

Subsidiaries and Jurisdictions

State or Other Date of

Jurisdiction of Incorporation, Ownership

Incorporation Organization (Direct or
Subsidiary or Organization or Acquisition Indirect)
1.Global Oro LLC Delaware 2003 100%
2.Global Plata LLC Delaware 2003 100%
3.Global Gold Mining LLC Delaware 2003 100%
4.Global Gold Hankavan LLC Armenia 2003 100%
5.Mego-Gold LLC Armenia 2005 100%
6.Getik Mining Company LLC Armenia 2006 100%
7.Marjan Mining Company Armenia 2010 45%
8.Global Gold Uranium LLC Delaware 2007 100%
9.Global Gold Armenia, LLC Delaware 2003 100%
10.Minera Global Chile Limitada Chile 2004 100%
11.Compania Minera Global Gold Valdivia S.C.M. Chile 2007 100%



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Van Z. Krikorian, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fkthe year ended December 31, 2010, of Globatl @arporation;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe years presented in this report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedareswused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluations; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal year (the registramfourth quarter in the case of an annual repbaf has materially affected, or is reasonably yikelmateriall
affect, the registrant's internal control over fioal reporting; and

5) The registrant's other certifying officers arftalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataummittee of the registrant's board of direcf@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: April 14, 2011 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
[, Jan E. Dulman, certify that:
1) I have reviewed this annual report on Form 1fkthe year ended December 31, 2010, of Globatl @arporation;

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorany untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nistatdisg with respect to the period
covered by this annual report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in thisnaial report, fairly present in all matet
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe years presented in this report;

4) The registrant's other certifying officers araté responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as def
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15(d)-15(b)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedareswused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tégistrant, including its consolidated subsidisris made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloting, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance reggitae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligslosure controls and procedures and presentisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluations; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportitngit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal year (the registramfourth quarter in the case of an annual repbaf has materially affected, or is reasonably yikelmateriall
affect, the registrant's internal control over fioal reporting; and

5) The registrant's other certifying officers arftalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataummittee of the registrant's board of direcf@nspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal coravelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: April 14, 2011 /sl Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PERIODIC REPORT

Each of the undersigned, in his capacity as aceafidf Global Gold Corporation (the "Companytigreby certifies, pursuant to Section 901
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. 135@jt: th

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Compamythe year ended December 31, 2010 fully compli¢is the requirements of Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act 84,015 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: April 14, 2010 /sl Van Z. Krikorian
Van Z. Krikorian
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: April 14, 2010 /sl Jan E. Dulman
Jan E. Dulman
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided to the Compady| be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosioni®r its staff upon request.



